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Products for Every Lifestyle

Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. is a regional
retailer that specializes in offering an exceptional
product selection at reasonable prices to smaller
communities throughout the central United States.
Our specialty is delivering those products with the
friendly, personal service found in the stores of
yesteryear, but with the modern convenience our
customers have come to expect.

With more than 250 stores across 21 states, we
are proud to have continually provided high quality
products at good value prices to our customers
for 105 years.
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| etters from thé Chairman and
the President & Chief Executive Officer

Warren H. Gfeller
Chairman of the Board

Duckwall-ALCO Stores is a different company than it was one year ago. Fiscal 2006 was a year
of transition and a time for finalizing a number of initiatives launched in Fiscal 2005. We have made
considerable progress, and | am pleased with where Bruce and his team have taken the company.

| look forward to Fiscal 2007 being a year in which we lay the foundation for future growth.

Fiscal 2006 Financial Performance

We knew going into Fiscal 2006 that many of our initiatives would have a negative impact on earnings.
Cleaning up old inventory, significantly reducing corporate overhead, closing underperforming stores
and launching a complete overhaul of our information technology (IT) systems all affected the bottom
line in the first three quarters of the year. It was a painful process, but we took the necessary steps

to position the company for future growth. As we moved into the fourth quarter, we began to see the
positive results of our efforts along with improved comparable store performance.

Although | am pleased with our progress, we cannot rest on our laurels. We must remain focused on
continuing to make improvements in all aspects of the business.

Fiscal 2007 Focus

Your Board has been active in evaluating and approving the Gompany’s Fiscal 2007 operating plan.
Ensuring the execution of the plan will be your Board’s primary focus during Fiscal 2007. You can expect
the Company to be focused on efforts to improve comparable store sales and bottom line contribution,
evaluation of new store performance and return on investment (ROI) relative to pro forma expectations,
expense control and successful implementation of the IT initiative.

Stock Performance and Share Repurchase

During Fiscal 2006 we repurchased 729,861 shares of stock at an average price of $20.54. With our
repurchase program and our transition initiatives started a little over a year ago, the stock price has
increased more than 40 percent and the market capitalization of the Company has increased over
$20.0 million. We plan to continue our stock repurchase program as opportunities arise.

Shareholder Communication

We continue our commitment to making our public communication more useful to our shareholders
and we value the feedback we have received on those efforts. In addition to our shareholder communi-
cations, this year we will focus on generating analyst coverage of the Company.

Board Performance and Accountability

We understand our job, as your Board, is to protect and enhance your shareholder value and rights.
As Chairman, | expect an active and knowledgeable Board. We must perform at a high level if we
expect the Company to do the same. Ultimately, maximizing shareholder value is how this or any
Board'’s performance wili be judged.

Thank you for the trust and confidence you have placed in our Company.

M

Warren H. Gfeller
Chairman of the Board




Since | joined the Company one year ago, we've come a long way.
Although Pm pleased with wat we've accomplished, there is much more
to do. We are moving ahead with confidence and staying focused on our

L ‘v. ]
Bruce C. Dale vision to transform Duckwall-ALCO Stores into a more competitive retailer.
President and CEO

Looking forward, many of the initiatives launched in Fiscal 2005 will
continue into this year and beyond. These initiatives lay the: foundation for the Company’s five-year plan
and will allow us to accelerate organic same store growth and initiate new sales growth through new
store developments.

Information Technology Upgrade

One of the major initiatives underway this year is a technology upgrade in all facets of our business.
We are refreshing all the existing technology hardware and software in our stores, which will improve
the customer experience, operational efficiencies and real-ime merchandising information.

New Merchandise

Following a complete review of all our key merchandising a-eas, we are in the process of developing
the right merchandise strategy that combines innovation, dasign and value. Specific merchandise
efforts that we are focusing on and will continue to improve include:

» Adjusting our merchandise mix to more readily bring ir new items and new categories that we
believe our customers desire.
* Expanding our offerings of consumer electronics.

¢ Presenting a more fashion-forward offering in our apperel departments, particularly ladies’ wear.

Existing Stores

Improvements continue in our efforts 1o make our stores a better place to shop. We are committed
to increasing same store sales by increasing store traffic, cL stomer conversion and higher average
purchase dollars. We want every shopping experience to be: a positive one, so with a commitment
to exciting new merchandise, an improved stock position, enhanced customer service and ease of
shopping, we are confident our customers will enjoy their visits to our stores and return on a more
frequent basis.

New Stores

As part of our future growth strategy, the Company has fornwlated a model store plan for our ALCO
stores based on a standard 18,224-square-foot store. We estimate sales of $2.14 miltion in the first
full year of cperations and a four percent sales growth per yizar. All four of our recently opened stores
are trending above projection with an average annualized volume of $2.7 million. We believe there are
opportunities for profitable growth by using disciplined site selection and we have plans to open

10 more ALCO stores in the first half of Fiscal 2007.

Outlook

I hope you'll agree that great things are happening at Duckwall-ALCO Stores. Our dedicated employ-
ees are leading the way every day—making a difference in their Company’s success and in their
communities. It is an exciting time of change and growth for our Company, and | am thrilled to be part
of this great team. Our decisions and actions underscore ourr commitment to become a destination

of choice for our customers and a profitable investment for our shareholders.

04

Bruce C. Dale
President and CEO




Technology Initiative

A major technology upgrade is currently underway that incorporates all facets of our business. The
capital for this project is estimated at $15 million. With the assistance of a consulting firm specializing
in retail technology, it was estimated that a five-year return on investment for this upgrade will be
approximately $37.2 million.

We are pleased to partner in this initiative with some of the finest retail technology vendors in the
industry. We are refreshing all the existing hardware and software technology including point of sale
registers, signature capture/debit PIN entry terminals, wireless terminals and printers, back office
computing and communication. This will help us improve both margin and sales by enabling the
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i Company to make market-based decisions while improving in-stock product selection, creating savings

in overhead, enhancing store employee productivity and providing better control of shrink.
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Our Technolegy Partners

In Fiscal 2007, we will complete a major technology upgrade throughout
all of our stores. The result will be an enhanced customer experience,
plus a positive impact on both sales and margins. |
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PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

History

Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc., (the “Company” or “Registrant”), was founded as a general merchandising operationt in 1901
in Abilene, Kansas by A. L. Duckwall. From its founding untit 1968, the Company conducted its retail operations as small variety or
“dime” stores. In 1968, the Company followed an emerging trend to discount retailing when it opened its first ALCO discount store.
The Company's overall business strategy involves identifying and opening stores in towns that will provide the Company with the
highest return on investment. Although the Company prefers markets that don’t have direct competition from national or regional
full-line discount stores, its strategy does not preclude it from entering competitive markets. This strategy includes opening either an
ALCO discount store or a Duckwall variety store, depending upon the market size. As of January 29, 2006, the Company operates
251 retail stores located in the central United States, consisting of 183 ALCO retail discount stores and 68 Duckwall variety stores.

The Company was incorporated on July 2, 1915 under the laws of Kansas. The Company's executive offices are located at
401 Cottage Street, Abilene, Kansas 67410-2832, and its telephone number is (785) 263-3350.

General

The Company is a regional retailer operating 251 stores in 21 states in the central United States. The Company's strategy is
to target smaller markets not served by other regional or national full-line retail discount chains and to provide the most convenient
access to retail shopping within each market, The Company's ALCO discount stores offer a full line of merchandise consisting of
approximately 35,000 items, including automotive, candy, crafts, domestics, electronics, fabrics, furniture, hardware, health and
beauty aids, housewares, jewelry, ladies’, men's and children's apparel and shoes, pre-recorded music and video, sporting goods,
seasonal items, stationery and toys. The Company's smaller Duckwall variety stores offer a more limited selection of similar

merchandise.

Of the Company's 183 ALCO discount stores, 154 stores are located in communities that do not have another full-line
discounter. The ALCO discount stores account for 93% of the Company's net sales. The current ALCO store averages 20,800
square feet of selling space. However, the Company's store expansion program is primarily directed toward opening stores with a
design prototype of approximately 18,000 square feet of selling space (“Class 18 Stores™). Based on the Company’s expetience, the
design of the Class 18 Stores produces the greatest return on investment for newly opened stores.

The Company's 68 Duckwall variety stores are primarily located in communities of less than 2,500 residents and are
designed to act as the primary convenience retailer in these smaller communities. These stores, which account for the remaining 7%
of the Company's net sales, average approximately 5,400 square feet of selling space and offer approximately 12,000 items
Operating Duckwall stores offer the Company the opportunity to serve the needs of a community that would not support a full-line
retail discount store with a reduced investment per store.

All of the Company's discount and variety stores are serviced by the Company's 352,000 square foot distribution center it
Abilene, Kansas.

Business Strategy

The Company intends to focus on executing a business strategy that includes the following key components:

Markets: The Company intends to open ALCO stores primarily in towns with populations of typically less than 5,000 the
are in trade areas with populations of less than 16,000 where: (1) there is no direct competition from national or region:
full-tine discount retailers; (2) economic and demographic criteria indicate the market is able to commercially support
discount retailer; and (3) the opening of an ALCO store would significantly reduce the likelihood of the entry into suc
market by another fuli-line discount retailer. This key component of the Company's strategy has guided the Company in bor
its opening of new stores and in its closing of existing stores.

Market Selection: The Company utilizes a detailed process to analyze under-served markets which includes examinir
factors such as distance from competition, trade area, demographics, retail sales levels, existence and stability of maj:
employers, location of county government, disposable income, and distance from the Company’s distribution center. Marke
that are determined to be sizable enough to support an ALCO or a Duckwall store, and that have no direct competition fro
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another full-line discount retailer, are examined clos:ly and eventually selected or passed over by the Company's experienced
management team.

Store Expansion: The Company's expansion program is designed primarily around the prototype Class 18 Store. This
prototype details shelf space, merchandise presentation, store items to be offered, parking, storage requirements, as well as
other store design considerations. The 18,000 square feet of selling space is large enough to permit a full line of the
Company's merchandise, while minimizing capital e::penditures, labor costs and general overhead costs. The Company will
also consider opportunities in acceptable markets to open ALCO stores in available space in buildings already constructed.
The expansion strategy for its Duckwall variety stores is based on opportunities in smaller communities where there is a need
and where existing premises are available for lease it a relatively low cost, resulting in lumted downside exposure. One
Duckwall store was opened in fiscal 2006. \
Technology: The Company has evaluated the costs and benefits of upgrading its current point-of-sale “POS”,
merchandising, human resources/payroll and financi«l systems. The Company’s project teamn has selected the hardware and
software and entered into agreements with the respective vendors. Implementation is currently underway. The Company
went live on the human resources/payroll and financial systems during the third quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company’s goal
is to conduct a pilot of the new POS system in five stores in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, with roll out of the POS system
to all stores later that year. Financial Planning, Performance Analysis, and Merchandise Allocation systems are expected to
go live in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. This represents an investment of approximately $8.9 million for hardware and
software in fiscal 2006, and an investment of an addit onal $10.2 million in fiscal 2007, as the POS systems are rolied out to
all existing stores. A required feature of this new PO$ system is perpetual inventory, which the Company does not currently
have in its stores. Perpetual inventory allows tracking of on-hand quantities at the item level, and enables automated
replenishment. Once the Company has on-hand infor nation and the ability to automatically replenish items in the stores, the
i benefits of these new systems can be significant. For example, the Company estimates it can reduce its inventory levels by
5% to 10%, and potentiaily more, because the system will have parameters set at the item level relating to how much
inventory to order based on criteria set centrally. A reduction in inventory will improve the Company's return on assets ratio.
In addition to lowering inventory, the new system has the poténtial to improve in-stock levels in the stores, thereby
increasing same-store sales and profits. The new system will also enable other improvements in the stores which are not
available today due to technology limitations. Once tt ose limitations are removed, the Company expects to re-engineer the
stores to take full advantage of the new technotogy. ‘

Advertising and Promotion: The Company utilizes ft ll-color photography advertising circulars of 16 to 24 pages distributed
through newspaper insertion or, in the case of inadequate newspaper coverage, through direct mail. During fiscal 2006, these
circulars were distributed 38 times in ALCO markets. In its Duckwall markets, the Company distributed a full-color, 4 page
insert 12 times during fiscal 2006. The Company’s marketing program is designed to create awareness and recognition of its
competitive pricing on a comprehensive merchandise selection forthe whole family. During fiscal 2007, the Company will
distribute approximately 40 circulars in ALCO markets, and 12 in the Duckwall markets.

Store Environment. The Company's stores are open, clean, bright and offer a pleasant atmosphere with disciplined product
presentation, attractive displays and efficient check-out procedures. The Company endeavors to staff its stores with
courteous, highly motivated, knowledgeable store ausociates in order to provide a convenient, friendly and enjoyable
shopping experience.

Store Development

The Company expects to open approximately ten ALCO stores during fiscal year 2007. The Company's strategy regarding
store development is to increase sales and profitability at existin stores by continually refining the merchandising mix and improving
operating efficiencies, and through new store openings in the Company's targeted base of under-served markets in the central United
States. The following table summarizes the Company's store development during the past three fiscal years:

2006 2005 2004
ALCO ~_ Duckwall ALCO _ Duckwall ALCO Duckwall
Stores Opened 7 1 .6 “\ 3 8 0
Stores Closed 10 13 ___4 3 2 6
Net New Stores 3) 12) 2 0 6 6)

As of January 29, 2006, the Company owned 13 ALCO and one Duckwall location, and leased 170 ALCO and 67 Duckwall
store locations. The Company's present intention is to lease all new stores; however, the company may own some of the ALCO
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locations. The estimated investment to open a new Class 18 ALCO Store that is leased is approximately $800,000 for the equipment -
and inventory.

As discussed above, before entering a new market with an ALCO or Duckwall store, the Company analyzes and screens _
available competitive, market, and demographic data to evaluate the suitability and attractiveness of the potential market.  The
screening process also involves a visit by officers of the Company to more subjectively evaluate the potential new site.

Store Environment and Merchandising

The Company manages its stores to attractively and conveniently display a full line of merchandise within the confines ofthe
stores' available square footage. Corporate merchandising direction is provided to each ALCO and Duckwall store to ensure a
consistent company-wide store presentation. To facilitate long-term merchandising planning, the Company divides its merchandise
into three core categories driven by the Company's customer profile: primary, secondary, and convenience. The primary core receives
management's primary focus, with a wide assortment of merchandise being placed in the most accessible locations within the stores
and receiving significant promotional consideration. The secondary core consists of categories of merchandise for which the Company
maintains a strong assortment that is easily and readily identifiable by its customers. The convenience core consists of categories of
merchandise for which ALCO will maintain convenient (but limited) assortments, focusing on key items that are in keeping with
customers' expectations for a discount store. Secondary and convenience cores include merchandise that the Company feels is
important to carry, as the target customer expects to find them within a discount store and they ensure a high level of customer traffic.
The Company continually evaluates and ranks all product lines, shifting product classifications when necessary to reflect the changing
demand for products.

Purchasing

Procurement and merchandising of products is directed by a staff of two Vice President - Divisional Merchandise Managers
who are each responsible for specific product categories. The Company employs 19 merchandise buyers and five assistant buyers who
each report to a Vice President - Divisional Merchandise Manager. Buyers are assisted by a management information system that
provides them with current price and volume information by SKU, thus allowing them to react quickly with buying and pricing
adjustments dictated by customer buying patterns.

The Company purchases its merchandise from approximately 2,000 suppliers. The Company generally does not utilize long-
term supply contracts. Only one supplier accounted for more than 5% of the Company's total purchases in fiscal 2006 and competing
brand name and private label products are available from other suppliers at competitive prices. The Company believes that its
relationships with its suppliers are good and that the loss of any one or more of its suppliers would not have a material adverse effect
on the Company.

Pricing

Merchandise pricing is done at the corporate level and is essentially the same for all of the ALCO stores, regardless of the
level of local competition. This pricing strategy, with its promotional activities, is designed to bring consistent value to the customer.
In fiscal 2007, promotions on various items will be offered approximately 40 times through advertising circulars. Even though the
same general pricing and advertising activities are carried out for all ALCO stores, the impact of such activities is significantly
different depending upon the level of competition in the market.

Distribution and Transportation

The Company operates a 352,000 square foot distribution center in Abilene, Kansas, from which it services each of the 182
ALCO discount stores and 68 Duckwall variety stores. The distribution center is responsible for distributing approximately 80% o
the Company's merchandise, with the balance being delivered directly to the Company's stores by its vendors. The distribution centel
ships to each of the Company's ALCO stores once a week, primarily through irregular route common carriers. The distribution cente;
maintains a fully integrated management information system, allowing the Company to utilize such cost cutting efficiencies a:
perpetual inventories, safety programs, and employee productivity software.

The Company also utilized its wholly owned subsidiary, SPD Truck Line, Inc. (the “Subsidiary”) for delivery to the stores
The Subsidiary acted as a contract carrier for the Company in transporting goods to and from its stores. The Subsidiary used five
tractors and leases 23 trailers for such deliveries. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company contracted with Werner Enterprises, Inc. t
be its dedicated transportation provider. Werner will utilize the Subsidiary’s equipment until such equipment leases expire.



Management Information Systems

The Company has committed significant resources to the purchase and application of available computer hardware and
software to its discount retailing operations with the intent to 1 >wer costs, improve customer service and enhance general business
planning. In general, the Company's merchandising systems are designed to integrate the key retailing functions of seasonal
merchandise planning, purchase order management, merchandise distribution, sales information and inventory maintenance and
replenishment. All of the Company's ALCO discount stores have POS computer terminals that record certain sales data in a format
that can be transmitted nightly to the Company's data processing facility where it is used to produce daily and weekly management
reports. During the last three fiscal years, the Company has devoted resources to development of systems that have improved
information available to management and improved specific operational efficiencies.

Approximately 2,000 of the Company's merchandise suppliers currently participate in the Company's electronic data
interchange (“EDI”) system, which makes it possible for the Company to place purchase orders electronically. A number of these
suppliers are able to utilize additionat EDI functions, including transmitting invoices and advance shipment notices to the Company
and receiving sales history from the Company. Refer to the sect on above: Business Strategy: Technology, for additional discussion
on the Company’s planned technology upgrades.

Store Locations
As of January 29, 2006, the Company operated 183 A_CO stores in 21 states located in smaller communities in the central
United States. The ALCO stores average approximately 20,8(0 square feet of selling space, with an additional 5,000 square feet

utilized for merchandise processing, temporary storage and administration. The Company also operates 68 Duckwall stores in 10
states. The geographic distribution of the Company's stores is us follows:

Duckwall Stores (68)

Arkansas (1) Colorado (5) Iowa (4) Kansas (27) | Nebraska (8)
New Mexico (1)  NorthDakota (2)  Oklahoma (9)  South Dakota (2)  Texas (9)

ALCO Stores (183)
Arizona (9) Arkansas (5) Colorado (12)  Idaho (3) Tllinois (7) Indiana (13)
Towa (9) Kansas (23) Minnesota (8)  Missouri (6) Montana (1) Nebraska (15)
New Mexico (8) North Dakota (7)  Ohio (6) Oklahoma (8) South Dakota (9)  Texas (24)
Utah (6) Wisconsin (1) Wyoming (3)

Competition

While the discount retail business in general is highly competitive, the Company's business strategy is to locate its ALCO
discount stores in smaller markets where there is no direct comp-tition with larger national or regional full-line discount chains, and
where it is believed no such competition is likely to develop. Accordingly, the Company's primary method of competing is to offer its
customers a conveniently located store with a wide range of merchandise at discount prices in a primary trade area population under
16,000 that does not have a large national or regional full-line: discount store. The Company believes that trade area size is a
significant deterrent to larger national and regional full-line discount chains. Duckwall variety stores are located in very small markets,
and like the ALCO stores, emphasize the convenience of location to the primary customer base.

In the discount retail business in general, price, merchardise selection, merchandise quality, advertising and customer service
are all important aspects of competing. The Company encounters. direct competition with national full-line discount stores in 27 of’its
ALCO markets, and another 8 ALCO stores are in direct competi:ion with regional full-line discount stores. The competing regional
and national full-line discount retailers are generally larger than the Company and the stores of such competitors in the Company's
markets are substantially larger, have a somewhat wider selection of merchandise and are very price competitive in some lines of
merchandise. Where there are no national or regional full-line discount retail stores directly competing with the Company's ALCO
stores, the Company's customers nevertheless shop at retail discoint stores and other retailers located in regional trade centers, and to
that extent the Company competes with such discount stores and retailers. Thé Company also competes for retail sales with mail order
companies, specialty retailers, mass merchandisers, dollar stores, manufacturer’s outlets, and the internet. In the 138 markets in which
the Company operates a Class 18 Store, only three markets havz direct competition from a national or regional full-line discount
retailer. The Company competes with dollar stores in approximately three-fourths of its ALCO stores and approximately forty percent
of its Duckwall stores.




Executive Officers of the Company

The following table sets forth the names, ages, positions and certain other information regarding the executive officers of  the
Company as of April 14, 2006.

Name Age Position

Bruce C. Dale 58 ‘ President and Chief Executive Officer

James E. Schoenbeck 62 Senior Vice President — Real Estate and Human Resources
John R. Sturdivant 61 Senior Vice President - Stores

Tom L. Canfield, Jr. - 51 Vice President - Distribution and Administration

Michael S. Marcus 51 Vice President - Finance and Treasurer

Michael J. Gawin 54 Vice President — Divisional Merchandise Manager — Softlines
Robert E. Swartz, Jr. 49 Vice President - Divisional Merchandise Manager — Hardlines
Anthony C. Corradi 45 Vice President — Information Technology

Except as set forth below, all of the executive officers have been associated with the Company in their present position or othe
capacity for more than the past five years. There are no family relationships among the executive officers of the Company.

Bruce C. Dale has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 28, 2005. From 2003 to 200¢
Mr. Dale was President and CEO of Franks Nursery and Crafts, Inc. From 1993 to 2003, Mr. Dale was with Michaels Stores, Inc
where he served for eight of those years as president of Aaron Brothers Art & Framing. Mr. Dale has approximately 36 years ¢
experience in the retail industry.

James E. Schoenbeck has served as Senior Vice President of Real Estate and Human Rsources since 2005. From 1988 to 200!
Mr. Schoenbeck served as Senior Vice President — Operations and Advertising. From 1975 to 1988, Mr. Schoenbeck served i
various capacities with the Company. Mr. Schoenbeck has approximately 31 years of experience in the retail industry.

John R. Sturdivant has served as Senior Vice President — Stores since February 13, 2006. For more than five years prior to tha
he served as Regional Vice President of Jo-Ann Stores, Inc. Mr. Sturdivant has approximately 43 years experience in the reta
industry.

Tom L. Canfield, Jr. has served as Vice President - Distribution and Administration since 1992. From 1973 to 1992, M
Canfield served in various capacities with the Company. Mr. Canfield has approximately 33 years of experience in the retail industr

Michael S. Marcus has served as Vice President — Finance and Treasurer since March 23, 2006. From 2004 to 2006, M
Marcus served in various capacities with the Company. From 1997 to 2003, Mr. Marcus served as Vice President and Chi:
Financial Officer of Weiner’s Stores, Inc. Mr. Marcus has approximately 17 years experience in the retail industry.

Michael J. Gawin has served as Vice President — Divisional Merchandise Manager since 1997. For more than five years prior
that, he served as Divisional Merchandise Manager for Shopko Stores, Inc. Mr. Gawin has approximately 33 years experience in tl
retail industry.

Robert E. Swartz, Jr. has served as Vice President — Divisional Merchandise Manger since 2000. From 1978 to 2000, M
Swartz served in various capacities with the Company. Mr. Swartz has approximately 28 years experience in the retail industry.

Anthony C. Corradi has served as Vice President — Chief Technology Officer since 2005. For five years prior to that, he was:
independent consultant. Mr. Corradi has approximately 23 years experience in the retail technology industry.

Employees

As of January 29, 2006, the Company employed approximately 4,800 people. Of'these employees, approximately 450 we
employed in the general office and distribution center in Abilene Kansas, 3,900 in the ALCO stores and 450 in the Duckwall store
Additional employees are hired on a seasonal basis, most of whom are sales personnel. There is no collective bargaining agent for a
of the Company's employees. The Company considers its relations with its employees to be excellent.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company encourages investors to carefully consider the risks described below and other information contained in this
document when considering an investment decision with respect to he Company’s securities. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to management, or that management currently deems immaterial, may also impair the Company’s business operations.
Any of the events discussed in the risk factors below may occur. If one or more of these events do occur, business, results of operations
or financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In that mstance, the trading price of the Company’s securities could
decline, and investors might lose part or all of their investment

Economic Conditions

Similar to other retail businesses, the Company’s operations may be affected adversely by general economic conditions and
events which result in reduced consumer spending in the riarkets served by its stores. Also, smaller communities where the
Company’s stores are located may be dependent upon a few lar ge employers or may be significantly affected by economic conditions in
the industry upon which the community relies for its economic vxablhty, such as the agricultural industry. This may make the
Company’s stores more vulnerable to a downturn in a partictlar segment of the economy than the Company’s competitors, which
operate in markets which are larger metropolitan areas where the local economy is more diverse.

Competition .

The Company operates in the discount retail business, which is highly competitive. Although the Company prefers markets
that don’t have direct competition from national or regional full-line discourit stores, competition still exists. Even innon-competitive
markets, the Company’s customers shop at retail discount stores and other retailers located in regional trade centers. The Company
also competes for retail sales with other entities, such as mail order companies, specialty retailers, mass merchandisers, dollar stores,
manufacturer’s outlets, and the internet. This competitive environments subjects the Company to the risk of reduced profitability
because the Company may be forced to lower its prices, resulting in lower margins, in order to maintain its competitive position.

Store Expansion

The growth in the Company’s sales and operating net ‘ncome depends to a substantial degree on its expansion program. This
expansion strategy is dependent upon the Company’s ability the open and operate new stores effectively, efficiently, andona proﬁtable
basis. The Company prefers to locate its ALCO stores in smaller retail markets where no competing full-line discount retail store is
located within the primary trade area. The Company’s ability 10 timely open new stores and to expand into additional market areas
depends in part on the following factors: availability of store lozations, the ability to hire and train new store personnel, the ability to
react to consumer needs and trends on a timely basis, and the availability of sufficient capital for expansion.

Information Technology

The Company’s ability to implement and train employces on the new POS software, its ability to utilize technology upgrades,
and to meet the timetables for rolling out the new technology to the stores could have a material impact on the Company’s results of
operations.

Government Regulation

The Company is subject to numerous federal, state and local government laws and regulations, including those relating to the
development, construction and operation of the Company’s store:s. The Company is also subject to laws governing its relationship with
employees, including minimum wage requirements, laws and r:gulations relating to overtime, working and safety conditions, and
citizenship requirements. Material increases in the cost of compliance with any applicable law or regulation and similar matters could
materially and adversely affect the Company.

Quarterly Fluctuations

Quarterly results of operations have historically fluctuared as a result of retail consumers purchasing patterns, with the highest
quarter in terms of sales and profitability being the fourth quartzr. Quarterly results of operations will likely continue to fluctuate
significantly as a result of such patterns and may fluctuate due tc the timing of new store openings.
Dependence on Officers

The development of the Company’s business is largely dependent on the efforts of its current management team headed by

Bruce C. Dale and seven other executive officers. The loss of 1he services of one or more of these officers could have a material
adverse effect on the Company.




Interest Rate Risk

The Company is subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on its financing requirements.
Changes in interest rates could have a negative impact on the Company’s profitability.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company owns facilities in Abilene, Kansas that consist of a general office (approximately 35,000 square feet), the
Distribution Center (approximately 352,000 square feet) and additional warehouse space adjacent to the general office.

Thirteen of the ALCO stores and one of the Duckwall stores operate in buildings owned by the Company. The remainder of
the stores operate in properties leased by the Company. As of January 29, 2006, such ALCO leases account for approximately
4,300,000 square feet of lease space, which expire as follows: approximately 357,960 square feet (8.4%) expire between January 29,
2006 and January 28, 2007; approximately 958,488 square feet (22.4%) expire between January 29, 2007 and February 3, 2008; and
approximately 637,081 square feet (14.9%) expire between February 3, 2008 and Febrary 2, 2009. The remainder of the leases expire
through 2021. All Duckwall store leases have terms remaining of fifty months or less. The majority of the leases that are about to
expire have renewal options with lease terms that are the same as the existing lease.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Other than routine litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business, the Company is not a party to any materia
litigation.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
No matters were submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year endex
January 29, 2006.
PARTII

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The Common Stock of the Company is quoted on the NASDAQ National Market tier of The NASDAQ Stock Market undk
the symbol “DUCK”. The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid information for the Company's Common Stock ft
each quarter of fiscal 2006 and 2005.

High Low
Fiscal 2006 First quarter $19.79 $16.79
Second quarter 23.90 18.55
Third quarter 24.50 21.10
Fourth quarter 25.59 20.02
High Tow
Fiscal 2005 First quarter $17.50 $13.96
Second quarter 17.89 15.51
Third quarter 18.65 i5.15
Fourth quarter 19.00 14.61



As of April 7, 2006, there were approximately 1,251 holders of record of the Common Stock of the Company. The Company
has not paid cash dividends on its Common Stock during the last five fiscal years. The terms of the Loan and Security Agreement,
dated as of April 15, 2002, between the Company and Bank >f America (formerly Fleet Retail Finance Inc.) allow for the payment of
dividends unless certain loan covenants are triggered, which are not expected to occur during fiscal 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan‘;‘Information

Number of securities | Weighted-average Number of securities
to be issued upon exercise price of remaining available for
exercise of outstanding options, future issuance under
outstanding cptions, warrants and rights equity compensation plans
Plan Category warrants and rights
Equity compensation plans approved
by stockholders: ‘
1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan 123,238 $12.50 0
2003 Incentive Stock Option Plan 110,000 $18.40 390,000
Equity compensation plans not ‘
approved by stockholders 0 $0.00 0

)
No Recent Dividend Payments; Restrictions on Payment of Dividends

The Company has not paid a cash dividend on the Cc mmon Stock for more than five years, and it has no plans to commence
paying cash dividends on the Common Stock. The Compan;/'s revolving loan credit facility currently allows the payment of cash
dividends unless certain loan covenants are triggered.

Company Repurchases of Common Stock

As shown in the following table, the Company repurchased 93,398 shares of the Common Stock during the three months
ended January 29, 2006,

Maximum
Total Number Number {(or
of shares (or Approximate
Units) Dollar Value)
Purchased as of Shares (or
Part of Units) that May
Total Number Publicly Yet Be
Of Shares _ Average Price Announced Purchased
(or Units) Paid per Share Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased (or Unit) Programs or Programs
Oct. 31 — Nov 30, 2005 18,398 23.78 18,398 75,000 shares
Dec. 1 —Dec. 30, 2005 0 0 - 0 75,000 shares
Dec. 31, 2005 - Jan. 29, 2006 75,000 2547 75,000 (a)

(a) The Board of Directors has authorized the purchase of an aggregate of 1,814,461 shares of the Common Stock of which
1,814,461 shares had been purchased as of January 29, 2006, This program was first announced in September 1998. During the
three months ended January 29, 2006, 93,398 shares were purchased under the program. The program has no expiration date. On
March 23, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a new plan avthorizing the repurchase of 200,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The plan has no expiration date.



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollars in thousands, except per share and store data)

The selected consolidated financial data presented below for, and as of the end of, each of the last
five fiscal years under the captions Statements of Operations Data and Balance Sheet Data have been derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company. This data should be read in conjunction with “Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” (Item 7) and the consolidated financial statements, refated
notes, and other financial information included herein (Item 8).

Fiscal Year Ended ,
January 29, January 30, February!, February2, February3,
Statement of Operations Data 2006 2005 2004 - 2003 2002
Net Sales $435,015 $409,345 $398,186 $371,854 $368,883
Cost of Sales 296,503 273,644 265,135 246,968 247,477
Gross Margin ‘ 138,512 135,701 133,051 124,886 121,406
Selling, general and administrative expenses 124,974 120,355 116,720 108,921 105,618
Depreciation and amortization 5,946 6,428 6,828 6,480 5,950
Income from continuing operations 7,592 8,918 9,503 9,485 9,839
Interest expense 1,273 . 1,230 1,386 1,609 2,778
Earning from continuing operations before
income taxes and discontinued operations 6,319 7,688 8,117 7,876 7,061
Income taxe expense 1,729 2,640 2,456 2,888 2,685
Earning from continuing operations before
discontinued operations 4,590 5,048 5,661 4,988 4,372
{Loss) income from discontinued operations, net
of income tax (1) (2,641) (1,125) 852 366 38:
Net earnings $1,949 $3,923 $6,513 $5,354 $4,75
Per Share Information
Earnings (loss) per share - basic:
Earnings (loss) before discontinued operations $1.12 $1.15 $1.33 $1.18 $1.0-
Discontinued operations (80.65) ($0.26) $0.20 $0.09 $0.0
Net earnings : $0.48 $0.89 $1.53 $1.26 $1.1
Earnings (loss) per share - diluted:
Earnings (loss) before discontinued operations $1.11 $1.13 $1.30 $1.15 $1.0
Discontinued operations (50.64) (8$0.25) $0.20 $0.08 $0.0
Net earnings $0.47 $0.88 $1.50 $1.23 $1.1
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 4,083,798 4,391,538 4,243 441 4235911  4,191,8C
Diluted 4,117,922 4,464,416 4,343 381 4,355,653  4,207,5¢

10



et

Fiscal Year Ended

_J;muary 29, 'January 30, Februaryl, February2, February3,

___2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Operating Data . :
Stores open at year-end 251 266 264 264 264
Stores in non-competitive markets at year-end (2) 222 231 230 229 221
Percentage of total stores in non-competitive ; : ‘
markets (2) v 88.45% « 86.84% 87.12% 86.74% 83.71%
Net sales of stores in non-competive markets (2) $381,863  $366,637 $363,634 $334,811 $317,585
Percentage of net sales from stores in :
non-competitive markets (2) 87.78% = 84.59% 83.99% 81.53% 77.12%
Comparable stores sales for all stores (3) 3.12% 0.13% 0.98% -0.05% 2.90%
Comparable stores sales for stores in
non-competitive markets (2)(3) 3.67% 0.78% 2.09% 0.09% 2.94%
Balance Sheet Data :
Total assets $178,922 '$163,118 $ 167,493 $169,900  $165,286
Total debt (includes captial lease ‘
obiligation and current maturities 26,240 8,605 10,876 24,611 26,437
Stockholders' equity 102,147 114,676 109,193 102,110 95,590

) Effective February 4, 2002, the Company adopted SEFAS No. 144; Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets. SFAS No. 144 provides a single accountir g model for long-lived assets to be disposed of. The statement also
changes the criteria for classifying an asset as held fr sale, broadens the scope of assets to be disposed of that qualify for
reporting as discontinued operations and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. The adoption of SFAS
No. 144 resulted in the reclassification as discontinue:d operations of certain prior year revenue and expense activity related
to twenty-two, seven, and eight stores closed during fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

(2) . ‘“Non-competitive” markets refer to those markets where there is not a national or regional full-line discount store located in
the primary market served by the Company. The Company's stores in such non-competitive markets nevertheless face
competition from various sources. See Item 1 “Business-Competition”.

3) Percentages, as adjusted to a comparable 52 week year, reflect the increase or decrease based upon a comparison of the
applicable fiscal year with the immediately precedim; fiscal year for stores open during the entirety of both years.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION.

Overview
Operations. The Company is a regional discount -etailer operating in 21 states in the central United States, with two
business segments, consisting of:

s the ALCO Stores segment. As of January 29, 2006, the Company operated 183 ALCO Stores which offer a wide variety of
general merchandise and a limited variety of food products and accounted for 93% of the Company's sales for fiscal 2006.
Total selling square footage for the ALCO segment a: the end of fiscal 2006 was 3,801,349.

. e the Duckwall Stores segment. As of January 29, 2006, the Company operated 68 Duckwall Stores which offer a more limited
general merchandise selection, but serve the needs of a community that is not large enough to support a full-line retail
discount store, and accounted for 7% of the Company'; sales for fiscal 2006. Total selling square footage for the Duckwall
segment at the end of fiscal 2006 was 366,928. .

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday close:it to January'31. Fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 each consisted of 52
weeks. For purposes of this management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, the financial
numbers are presented in thousands.

Strategy. The Company's overall business strategy involves identifying and opening stores in towns that will provide the
Company with the highest return on investment. Although the Company prefers markets that don’t have direct competition from
national or regional full-line discount stores, its strategy does not preclude it from entering competitive markets. Even in non-
competitive markets, competition still exists, as the Company's customers still shop at retail discount stores and other retailers located
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in regional trade centers. The Company also competes for retail sales with other entities, such as mail order companies, specialty
retailers, mass merchandisers, dollar stores, manufacturer's outlets, and the internet.

The Company is constantly evaluating the appropriate mix of merchandise to improve sales and gross margin performance.
The Company uses centralized purchasing, merchandising, pricing and warehousing to obtain volume discounts, improve efficiencies
and achieve consistency among stores and the best overall results. The Company utilizes information obtained from its point-of-sale
system and regular input from its store associates to determine its merchandise offerings.

The Company has evaluated the costs and benefits of upgrading its current point-of-sale “POS”, merchandising, human |
resources/payroll and financial systems. The Company’s project team has selected the hardware and software and entered into -
agreements with the respective vendors. Implementation is currently underway. The Company went live on the human
resources/payroll and financial systems during the third quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company’s goal is to conduct a pilot of the new
POS system in five stores in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, with roll out of the POS system to all stores later that year. Financial
Planning, Performance Analysis, and Merchandise Allocation systems are expected to go live in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. This
represents an investment of approximately $8.9 million for hardware and software in fiscal 2006, and an investment of an additional -
$10.2 million in fiscal 2007, as the POS systems are rolled out to all existing stores. A required feature of this new POS system is
perpetual inventory, which the Company does not currently have in its stores. Perpetual inventory allows tracking of on-hand -
quantities at the item level, and enables automated replenishment. Once the Company has on-hand information and the ability to
automatically replenish items in the stores, the benefits of these new systems can be significant. For example, the Company estimates '
it can reduce its inventory levels by 5% to 10%, and potentially more, because the system will have parameters set at the item level
relating to how much inventory to order based on criteria set centrally. A reduction in inventory will improve the Company's return on
assets ratio. In addition to lowering inventory, the new system has the potential to improve in-stock levels in the stores, thereby
increasing same-store sales and profits. The new system will also enable other improvements in the stores which are not available
today due to technology limitations. Once those limitations are removed, the Company expects to re-engineer the stores to take full
advantage of the new technology.

The Company, when appropriate, implements new merchandising and marketing initiatives in an effort to increase customer
traffic and same-store sales. The Company is changing its focus from consumable products that carry a lower margin to higher margin
soft goods. This includes more fashion apparel that will appeal to a broad base of customers. The Company is also adding new items
to its assortments and has made changes to its advertising program that reduces the number of items advertised, but increases the
frequency of the advertising.

The Company is also proactive in looking for and implementing ways to improve the bottom line through expense reductions
in selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A"). The Company finalized its restructuring plan on April 28, 2005 and on
May 3, 2005, the Company publicly announced the restructuring. The restructuring is designed to help the Company more effectively
compete in today’s competitive retail environment. As a part of the restructuring, 46 corporate positions were eliminated, which will
result in an annualized savings of approximately $2,200. One-time costs associated with the restructuring were approximately $734.

Recent Events. As described more completely under Liquidity and Capital Resources-Subsequent Events, on December 1,
2005 and December 5, 20035, respectively, the Company entered into a software lease and a flexible lease financing proposal regarding
the lease of POS hardware, including new POS terminals and centralized hardware. The software lease begins on January 1, 2006 and
the POS hardware lease is to begin by September 30, 2006.

AsofJuly 31,2005, the Company’s market capital held by non-affiliates exceeded $75,000. As a result, the Company isan
accelerated filer. This caused the Company to incur additional costs to document and test internal controls, as well as having those
controls audited. These costs will be an on-going expense in all future fiscal years.

On March 17, 2005, the Company announced that, as part of its initiatives designed to improve performance of the Company
for its shareholders, it would be closing 8 ALCO and 12 Duckwall stores that do not meet the Company’s minimum return on
investment threshold. The process to close these stores was completed on schedule in early June 2005. Of'the stores being closed, the
Company owned two ALCO stores and leased the properties for the remaining 18 stores. The cost to close these stores, before income
taxes, was approximately $2,000 in the first quarter and approximately $1,600 in the second quarter. The twenty stores that closed
produced gross sales of $19,900 in fiscal year 2005, and employed approximately 260 associates.

During fiscal 2006, the Company purchased and retired 729,861 shares of the Company’s Common Stock for an average

price of $20.54. All shares repurchased were retired. On March 23, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a plan to repurchase an
additional 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.

Key Items in Fiscal 2006. The Company measures itself against a number of financial metrics to assess its performance
Some of the important financial items during fiscal 2006 were:
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Net sales increased 6.3% to $435,015. Same store sales increased 3.1% compared to the prior year.
Gross margin decreased to 31.8% of sales, compared to 33.4% in the prior year.

Selling, general and administrative expenses were 28.7% of sales, compared to 29.6% in the prior year.
Earnings per share was $0.47, compared to earning; of $.88 per:share in the prior year.

Return on average equity was 1.8%, compared to 3.5% in the prior year.

Same store sales growth is a measure which may indicate whether existing stores are maintaining their market share. Other
factors, such as the overall economy, may also affect same stcre sales. The Company defines same stores as those stores that were
open as of the first day of the prior fiscal year and remain oren at the end of the reporting period (this may also be referred to as
comparable stores). Same store sales for all Company stores increased 3:1% compared to last year. The ALCO same store sales
increased 3.1%, and the Duckwall same store sales increased 2.8% during fiscal 2006.

Gross margin percentage is a key measure of the Comipany’s ability to maximize profit on the purchase and subsequent sale of
merchandise, while minimizing promotional and clearance ma kdowns, shrinkage, damage, and returns. Gross margin percentage is
defined as sales less cost of sales, expressed as a percentage of sales.

Selling, general and administrative expenses are a measure of the Company’s ability to manage and control its expenses to
purchase, distribute and sell merchandise.

Earnings per share ("EPS") growth is an indicator ¢f the returns generated for the Company's stockholders. EPS from
continuing operations was $1.11 per diluted share for fiscal 20106, compared to $1.13 per diluted share for the prior fiscal year.

Return on average equity is a measure of how much income was produced on the average equity of the Company.

Results of Operations. The following table sets forth, for the fiscal years indicated, the components of the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations expressed as a percentage of net sales:

! Fiscal Year Ended
January 29, January 30, February 1,
2006 2005 2004
Net sales ' . 1000 % 1000 % 1000 %
Cost of sales . . 682 66.8 66.6
Gross margin - 31.8 33.2 334
Selling, general and administrative expenses © 287 294 293
Depreciation and amortization 14 1.6 1.7
Total operating expenses 30.1 31.0 31.0
Income from continuing operations ‘ 1.7 22 2.4
Interest expense ; 0.3 0.3 0.3
Earnings from continuing operations before income ‘
taxes and discontinued operations 1.5 1.9 2.0
Income tax expense . 04 0.6 0.6
Earnings from continuing operations before discontinued
operations 1 1.2 1.4
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income tax L (0.6) {0.3) 0.2
Net earnings . 04 % 1.0 % 1.6 %

Critical Accounting Policies

Inventory: As discussed in Note 1(d) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
net realizable value with cost determined using the last-in, first-o 1t (LIFO) method. The retail inventory method (*“RIM™) used by the
Company is an averaging method that has been widely used in the retail industry. This method calculates a cost to retail ratio that is
applied to the retail value of inventory to calculate cost inventor/ and the resulting gross margin. Use of the RIM method does not
eliminate the use of management judgments and estimates, inclu¢ ing markdowns and shrinkage, which significantly impact the ending
inventory valuation at cost and the resulting gross margins. The Company continually evaluates product categories to determine if
markdown action is appropriate, or if a markdown reserve should be established. The Company recognizes that the use of the RIM
will result in valuing inventories at lower of cost or market if markdowns ate currently taken as a reduction of the retail value of
inventories. As ofJanuary 29,2006 and January 30, 2005, the Company had recorded markdowns that had not been taken and which
served to reduce inventories to lower of cost or market by approximately $597,000 and $398,000, respectively. Management believes
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that the RIM provides an inventory valuation which reasonably approximates cost and results in carrying inventory at the lower of cost
or market. .

Insurance: The Company considers determination of general insurance cost a critical accounting policy. As described below,
the Company is essentially self insured for its workers compensation, medical insurance and general liability insurance. Due to the fact
that it takes more than one year to determine the actual costs under these plans, these costs are estimated based on the Company's
historical loss experience and estimates from the insurance carriers and consultants. As described below, actual costs may vary

significantly from estimates:

Workers Compensation and General Liability. The Company is essentially self insured for workers compensation
and general liability claims due to large deductibles on its policies. The Company records estimates for expense accruals.
During the Company's third quarter in fiscal 2005, the Company determined that previous estimates were inadequate due to
escalating costs per claim. As a result of this change in estimate, in the third quarter in fiscal 2005, the Company had to
increase its workers compensation and general liability reserves significantly and recorded additional expense of $463.
During the Company's second quarter in fiscal 2006, the Company determined that previous reserves were more than
required due to fewer claims developing than estimated. As a result of this change in estimate, in the second quarter in fiscal
2006, the Company decreased its workers compensation and general liability reserves significantly and recorded a reduction

of expense of $901.

Medical. The Company is also essentially self insured for medical insurance and covers all claims in a plan year
related to an individual until they exceed $125. The Company has responded to increases in the cost of medical coverage by
taking steps that were effective August 1, 2005 to increase the premiums paid by its associates and by implementing other
changes that are designed to control future medical insurance costs.

Income Taxes: The Company’s tax provision and establishment of reserves for potential tax liabilities involves the use of
estimates and judgment. The Company has identified exposures for which they have established a reserve, such as differences in
interpretation of tax laws at the federal, state, and local units of government. In the ordinary course of business, the Company analyzes
its income accounts. During fiscal years 2006 and 2004, the Company determined that it was overaccrued with respect to certair
matters arising in prior years. The Company reversed such overaccrual of approximately $371 and $618 during fiscal years 2006 anc

2004, respectively.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Fiscal year 2006 included a number of one-time costs and markdowns associated with the implementation of programs focusex
on improving long-term performance. The Company has outlined a number of initiatives that address the poor performance of each o
the key performance measures, with the goal of improving performance in each area over the long term.

Net sales for fiscal 2006 increased $25.7 million or 6.3% to $435.0 million compared to $409.3 million for fiscal 2005
During fiscal 2006, the Company opened seven ALCO and one Duckwall stores. Ten ALCO and thirteen Duckwall stores wer:
closed, resulting in a year end total of 251stores. Net sales for all stores open the full vear in both fiscal 2006 and 2005 (same stores’
increased by $12,596 or 3.1% in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005. During the second quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company began
process of eliminating seasonal carryover and distressed inventory. Markdowns that were taken to eliminate this inventory wer
completed in the third quarter, and affected gross margin as discussed below. A number of factors contributed to the same store sale
growth, including liquidation of distressed inventory discussed above, as well as expanded store operating hours, better in-stoc
position and new product offerings.

Gross margin for fiscal 2006 increased $2.8 million, or 2.1%, to $138.5 million compared to $135.7 million in fiscal 2005. As
percentage of net sales, gross margin decreased to 31.8% in fiscal 2006 compared to 33.2% in fiscal 2005. This decrease in the gros
margin percentage was attributable to higher markdowns resulting from the Company’s efforts to reduce its seasonal inventor
carryover. The impact of the additional markdowns was $6.6 million at cost, which reduced the gross margin percentage by 1.5%
Other factors affecting margin included higher transportation costs, offset in part by an improved mix of sales and higher markup ¢

purchases. :

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $4.6 million or 3.8% to $125.0 million in fiscal 2006 compared |
$120.4 million in fiscal 2005. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 28.7% in fiscal 20C
and 29.4% in fiscal 2005. Non-comparable stores accounted for $3,871 of this increase. Other SG&A expense categories we
subject to inflationary pressures, but those increases were offset by the Company’s cost containment initiatives.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased 3482 or 7.5 % to $5.9 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $6.4 million

fiscal 2005. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense was attributable to store fixtures and equipment becoming ful
depreciated in the current fiscal year on a large number of ALCO stores that were opened in fiscal years 1997 and 1998,
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Income from continuing operations decreased $1.3 mnillion, or 14.9%, to $7.6 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $8.9 million
in fiscal 2005. Income from continuing operations as a percentage of net sales.was 1.7% in fiscal 2006 compared to 2.2% in fiscal
2005. The reduction in gross margin as described above had the largest impact on the reduced income from continuing operations.

Interest expense increased $43, or 3.5%, to $1.3 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $1.2 million in fiscal 2005. Interest
expense may increase if interest rates continue to rise or if the Company expands its borrowing to fund capital expenditures or other
programs.

Income taxes on continuing operations were $1.7 inillion in fiscal 2006 compared to $2.6 million in fiscal 2005. The
Company's effective tax rate was 27.4% in fiscal 2006 and 34.3% in fiscal 2005. The rate was lower in fiscal 2006 because, during
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Company, based on current information, analyzed its income tax liability account and determined
that it was over-accrued with respect to certain matters aris ng in prlor years. The Company reversed such over-accrual of $371
during fiscal 2006. ,

Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes was $2.6 mxllxon in fiscal 2006, compared to a loss of $1.1 million in
fiscal 2005.

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Fiscal 2005 was a disappointing year in every category of the Company’s key performance measures. Company revenue goals
were not met, and same store sales performance was unacceptable. Fiscal year 2005 included a number of one-time costs and
markdowns associated with the implementation of programs {ocused on improving long-term performance. The Company has outlined
a number of initiatives that address the poor performance of each of the key performance measures, with the goal of improving
performance in each area over the long term. ‘

Net sales for fiscal 2005 increased $11.2 million o1 2.8% to $409.3 million compared to $398.2 million for fiscal 2004.
During fiscal 2005, the Company opened 6 ALCO and 3 Duckwall stores. Four ALCO and three Duckwall stores were closed,
resulting in a year end total of 266 stores. The increase in net sales was due primarily to new stores opened over the last two fiscal
years. Net sales for all stores open the full year in both fiscal 2005 and 2004 (same stores), increased by $512 or 0.1% in fiscal 2003
compared to fiscal 2004. Comparable store sales of the AI.CO stores in non-competitive markets increased 0.6%. Sales in the
Duckwall division were comparatively strong, with a 2.5% comparable store increase.

Gross margin for fiscal 2005 increased $2.7 million, or 2..0%, to $135.7 million compared to $133.1 million in fiscal 2004, Asa
percentage of net sales, gross margin decreased to 33.2% in fiical 2005 compared to 33.4% in fiscal 2004. This decrease in the gross
margin percentage was attributable to a less favorable mix of sales and higher markdowns, partially offset by lower shrink. The gross
margin percentage was also unfavorably impacted by higher transportation costs, as a result of higher fuel prices. The shift in sales
mix partly reflects the Company’s decision to expand the offerings of consumable products within its stores. The higher markdowns
were primarily in the fourth quarter, and included those resulting from the Company’s efforts to reduce its seasonal inventory
carryover.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increaszd $3.6 million or 3.1% to $120.4 million in fiscal 2005 compared to
$116.7 million in fiscal 2004. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 29.4% in fiscal 2005
and 29.3% in fiscal 2004, due to significantly higher general and medical insurance costs, and the one-time costs of a business advisory
service, the abandonment of a technology asset, costs associated with the retirement of the Company’s President, and a lease
accounting charge in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year. The largest impact on SG&A was insurance, where rising costs added $2.2
million in additional expense during fiscal 2005. This equates to an additional 0.5% of sales.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $400 or 6.2% to $6.4 million in fiscal 2005 compared to $6.8 million in
fiscal 2004. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense was attributable to store fixtures and equipment becoming fully
depreciated in the current fiscal year on a large number of ALCO stores that were opened in fiscal years 1996 and 1997.

Income from continuing operations decreased $585, or 6.2%, to $8.9 million in fiscal 2005 compared to $9.5 million in fiscal
2004. The decrease was a result of SG&A expenses increasing by more than the amount of the Gross Profit dollars increase. Income
from continuing operations as a percentage of net sales was 2 2% in fiscal 2005 compared to 2.4% in fiscal 2004.

Interest expense decreased $156, or 11.3%, in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. The reduction in interest expense was
due to lower amounts borrowed on the revolver.

Income taxes were $2.6 million in fiscal 2005 compar:d to $2.5 million in fiscal 2004, The Company's effective tax rate was
34.3 % in fiscal 2005 and 30.3% in fiscal 2004. The rate was lower in fiscal 2004 because, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004,
the Company, based on current information, analyzed its income tax liability account and determined that it was over-accrued with
respect to certain matters arising in prior years. The Company reversed such over-accrual of $618 during 2004 . Approximately $200
of this adjustment was for previously unidentified state tax crecits relating to prior years, which the Company became aware of in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. ;
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Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes was $1.1 million in fiscal 2005, compared to income, net of income
taxes of $852 in fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2004, a company owned store was closed and the building was sold. The pre-tax gain on sale
of the building in the amount of $406 was accounted for as part of discontinued operations.

SG&A Detail; Certain Financial Matters

The Company believes the following detailed information is useful in analyzing its business results and has been requested to
provide this information by its shareholders. All information presented is from continuing operations.
Year to Date

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
SG&A Expenses Breakout
General Office $ 14,707 $ 15,863
Distibution Center 8319 8372
SPD Truck Lines 1,124 1,040
Profit Sharing - 420
Comparable Stores SG&A 94,842 92,550
Non Comp Stores SG&A # 5,982 2,111
Final SG&A as reported in financial statements $ 124974  § 120,355
Return on Average Equity**** 1.80% 3.50%
(ROE)
Net Sales 435,015 409,345
SG&A as % of Sales 28.73% 29.40%
SG&A per average selling square foot™* $ 3126 § 31.13
EBITDA** $ 13,538 § 15,346
EBITDA per average selling square foot*** $ 339 § 3.97
Sales per average selling square feet*
ALCO $ 111.62 § 108.73
Duckwall $ 81.12 § 78.06
Total $ 108.80 § 105.88
Average Selling Square Feet™* 3,998 3,866
Average Square Feet % Change 3.42% 3.99%
Total Stores Operating beginning of Period 266 264
Total Stores Operating end of Period 251 266

* Average selling square feet is (beginning square feet plus ending square feet) divided by 2.

** EBITDA is earnings from continuing operations before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

**% EBITDA per selling square foot is a non-GAAP financial measure and is calculated as EBITDA
divided by selling square feet.

**** Return on average equity (ROE) is calculated as Net Earnings divided by average stockholder's equity.
Average Stockholders' Equity is calculated as (beginning of period stockholders' equity plus end of

period stockholder's equity) divided by 2 ‘
# Non Comp Stores are those stores opened in Fiscal 2005 & Fiscal 2006.
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Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005 »
General Office expenses for fiscal 2006 decreased $1,156, or 7.3%. The majority of the decrease was related to reductions in
payroll ($425) and health care benefits ($295), along with a 13ss on asset disposals that occurred in fiscal 2005 that did not recur
in fiscal 2006 ($485). The Company’s cost cutting initiatives produced reductions throughout the other areas of the general
office. These reductions were offset by increased costs relate to the implementation of the new previously discussed IT systems.

Distribution center expenses decreased $53, or 0.6%. Employee health care benefits accounted for this reduction.
SPD Truck Line expenses increased $84, or 8.1%. The increase is attributable to increased costs of diesel fuel.

Comparable store SG&A expenses increased $2,292, or 2.5%. Utilities, credit card fees, and advertising accounted for the
majority of this increase. :

Non Comparable Stores SG&A expenses increased $3,871. The Company opened seven new stores during the year.

Reconciliation and Explanation of Non-GAAP Financial Veasures
The following table shows the reconciliation of EBITDA and EBITDA per selling square foot to the earnings (loss) from

continuing operations, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP:

2006 2005
Earnings from continuing operations ‘ 4,590 5,048
Plus interest ' 1,273 1,230
Plus taxes ‘ 1,729 2,640
Plus depreciation and amortization 5,946 6,428
=EBITDA 13,538 15,346

2006 2005
Earnings from continugin operations per square foot $1.15 $1.31
Plus interest per square foot $0.32 $0.32
Plus taxes per square foot ‘ $0.43 $0.68
Plus depreciation and amortization per square foot $1.49 $1.66
=EBITDA per selling square foot . ; $3.39 $3.97

Seasonality and Quarterly Results

The following table sets forth the Company's net sales, gross margin, income from operations, and net earnings during each
quarter of fiscal 2006 and 2005.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter | Quarter Quarter Quarter (1)

(dollars in millions)

Fiscal 2006  Net Sales $98.0 $108.7 $101.1 $127.2
Gross Margin 30.6 32.7 327 4.5
Earnings from continuing operations (1 .2)‘; 0.7 (0.1) 5.1
Net Earnings (loss) 2.7y (0.3) (0.2) 5.2
Fiscal 2005  Net Sales $95.4° $102.3 $94.3 $117.4
Gross Margin 319 33.9 32.5 373
Eamings from continuing operations 09 14 0.5 23
Net Earnings 0.7! 12 (©.1) 2.1

(1) In fiscal 2006, the reduction in shrinkage related to a wurehouse inventory adjustment contributed $1.3 million to the gross margin. A
reversal of an over-accrual of income taxes of $371 positively impact:d net earnings.

See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement:: for quarterly eamings per share information.

The Company’s business is subject to seasonal fluctuations. The Company’s highest sales levels occur in the fourth quarter of
its fiscal year which includes the Christmas holiday selling season. The Company's results of operations in any one quarter are not
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necessarily indicative of the results of operations that can be expected for any other quarter or for the full fiscal year. The Company's
results of operations may also fluctuate from quarter to quarter as a result of the amount and timing of sales contributed by new stores
and the integration of the new stores into the operations of the Company, as well as other factors. The addition of a large number of
new stores can, therefore, significantly affect the quarterly results of operations.

Inflation

Management does not believe that its merchandising operations have been materially affected by inflation over the past few
years. The Company will continue to monitor costs, take advantage of vendor incentive programs, selectively buy from competitive
vendors and adjust merchandise prices based on market conditions.

The Company’s operating expenses have been impacted by increases in insurance expenses, as well as competitive pressures
in wages in selected markets. See additional discussion of wages in the “Government Regulation” section.

The increase in the price of oil adversely affects the Company’s transportation costs, both on inbound shipments to the
Company’s distribution center, and on outbound shipments of merchandise to the stores. The Company also believes the higher retail
price of gasoline adversely affects the amount of discretionary spending dollars our customers have to spend at our stores.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At the end of fiscal 2006, working capital (defined as current assets less current liabilities) was $90.6 million compared to
$95.4 million at the end of fiscal 2005 and $89.5 million at the end of fiscal 2004,

The Company's primary sources of funds are cash flow from operations, borrowings under its revolving loan credit facility,
vendor trade credit financing and lease financing. In fiscal year 2005 the Company completed a sale-leaseback of a number of its
owned stores. The proceeds from this transaction amounted to $1.7 million. No sale-leaseback transactions were completed in fiscal
2006 or fiscal 2004.

Cash provided by operating activities aggregated $12.2 million, $5.8 million, and $16.4 million, in fiscal 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The decrease in cash provided in fiscal 2005 relative to fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2004 resulted primarily from a
decrease in accounts payable.

The Company uses its revolving loan credit facility and vendor trade credit financing to fund the build up of inventories
periodically during the year for its peak selling seasons and to meet other short-term cash requirements. The revolving loan credit
facility provides up to $70 million of financing in the form of notes payable and letters of credit. The loan agreement expires in April
2010. The revolving loan note payable and letter of credit balance at January 29, 2006 was $21.0 million, resulting in an available line
of credit at that date of $49.0 million. Loan advances are secured by a security interest in the Company’s inventory. The loan
agreement contains various restrictions that are applicable when outstanding borrowings exceed $42.5 million. Short-term trade credit
represents a significant source of financing for inventory to the Company. Trade credit arises from the willingness of the Company's
vendors to grant payment terms for inventory purchases.

In fiscal 2006, the Company had net cash borrowings of $13.0 million on its revolving credit facility, made cash payments of
$1.1 million to reduce its capital lease obligations, and repurchased $13.1 million of Company stock. The Companyreceived $423 in
proceeds from the exercise of outstanding stock dptions. In fiscal 2005, the Company made net cash payments on its revolving credit
facility of $935 and made cash payments of $1.3 million to reduce its long-term debt and capital lease obligations, and repurchased
$80 of Company stock. The Company received $1.3 million in proceeds from the exercise of outstanding stock options. In fiscal 2004,
the Company made net cash payments on its revolving credit facility of $12.5 million and made cash payments of $1.2 million to
reduce its long-term debt and capital lease obligations, and repurchased $658 of Company stock. The Company received $868 in
proceeds from the exercise of outstanding stock options. The Company executed operating leases for 15 additional stores during the
three year period ending in fiscal 2006. The Company’s long-range plan assumes growth in the number of stores and, in accordance
with this plan, 7 new ALCO and one new Duckwall stores were opened in fiscal 2006 and approximately 10 new ALCO stores are
expected to be opened in fiscal 2007. The Company believes that with the $70 million line of credit, sufficient capital is available to
fund the Company’s planned expansion.

Cash used for acquisition of property and equipment in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $11.1 million, $6.5 million, and
$4.3 million, respectively. A sale-leaseback of store buildings was completed in the amount of $1.7 million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal
20035, company owned surplus land was sold for $315, and in fiscal 2004, a company owned store was closed and the building was
sold for $1.2 million. Anticipated cash payments for acquisition of property and equipment in fiscal 2007, principally for store
buildings and fixtures, and equipment, are $22.3 million. The net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
$11.1 million, $4.6 million, and $3.1 million, respectively.

Since 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors has approved plans to repurchase up to 1,814,461 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (the “Stock Repurchase Program™). Purchases pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program were made from time to
time in the open market or directly from stockholders at prevailing market prices. The Stock Repurchase Program was funded by cash
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generated from operations and borrowing under the Compezny’s credit facility. As of January 29, 2006, the Company had purchased
and retired 1,814,461 shares of Common Stock for $23.9 million, which represents 35% of the shares outstanding as of the initial
Stock Repurchase Program approval in 1998. On March 23, 2006 the Board of Directors approved a new plan authorizing the
repurchase of 200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock

The following table summarizes the Company’s significant contractual obligations payable as of January 29, 2006 (in
thousands). Payments due under the revolving loan credit facility and long-term debt represent principal payments only.

Payments due by Period
Less than 1-3 4.5 After
Contractual Obligations Total _ lyear ‘ years years 5 years
Revolving Loan Credit Facility 17,062 0 0 17,062 0
Capital Lease Obligations 5,853 1,489 “ 1,933 1,167 1,264
Operating Leases 56,937 10,722 . 15,286 8,874 22,055
Contingent Rentals 11,700 1,300 | 2,900 3,000 4,500
Total contractual cash obligations 91,552 13,511 20,119 30,103 27,819

Expansion Plans ‘\

The continued growth of the Company is dependent, in large part, upon the Company’s ability to open and operate new stores
on a timely and profitable basis. The Company plans to open approximately ten ALCO stores in fiscal 2007, While the Company
believes that adequate sites are currently available, the rate of new store openings is subject to various contingencies, many of which
are beyond the Company’s control. These contingencies include the availability of acceptable communities for store locations, the
Company’s ability to secure suitable store sites on a timely basis and on satisfactory terms, the Company’s ability to hire, train and
retain qualified personnel, the availability of adequate capital resources and the successful integration of new stores into existing
operations. There can be no assurance that the Company will te able to continue to successfully identify and obtain new store sites or
that once obtained, the new stores will achieve satisfactory sales or profitability.

New Accounting Standard

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board adopted SFAS No. 123(R), (“123(R)”), Share-Based
Payment. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting, for Stock Issued to Employees. Generally, the approach in 123(R) is
similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123. However, 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no
longer an alternative. Accordingly, the adoption of 123(R)’s fair value method will have an impact on our results of operations. The
Company is required to adopt 123(R) during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 however the Company has not yet determined the impact
it will have on its results of operations.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND FACTORS THAT
MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS, FINANCIAL CONDITION OR BUSINESS

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not statements of historical fact may constitute
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 21E of the Exchange Act. These statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties, as described below. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (i) projections of revenues,
income or loss, earnings or loss per share, capital expenditures, s'ore openings, store closings, payment or non-payment of dividends,
capital structure and other financial items, (ii) statements of plans and objectives of the Company’s management or Board of Directors,
including plans or objectives relating to inventory, store developraent, marketing, competition, business strategy, store environment,
merchandising, purchasing, pricing, distribution, transportation, store locations and information systems, (iii) statements of future
economic performance, and (iv) statements of assumptions underlying the statements described in (i}, (ii) and (iii). Forward-looking
statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,”
“could,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates”, “projects” or “anticipatzs,” variations thereof or similar expressions.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance or results. They involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. The Company’s future results of operations, financial condition and business operations may differ materially from the
forward-looking statements or the historical information stated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Stockholders and investors are
cautioned not to put undue reliance on any forward-looking stateraent.
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There are a number of factors and uncertainties that could cause actual results of operations, financial condition or business
contemplated by the forward-looking statements to differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements made
herein or elsewhere orally or in writing, by, or on behalf of, the Company, including those factors described in “Item 1A, Risk
Factors” above. Other factors not identified herein could also have such an effect.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The Company is subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on its financing, investing and cash
management activities. The Company maintains a secured line of credit at variable interest rates to meet the short-term needs of'its
expansion program and seasonal inventory increases. The credit line available is $70,000, which carries a variable rate of interest. On
June 1, 2005, the Company agreed to extend the existing line of credit with Bank of America, which was due on April 15, 2006. The
loan agreement is now due on April 15, 2010.

The Company’s borrowing arrangement contains no limitation on the change in the variable interest rate paid by the
Company. Based on the Company’s average borrowing outstanding during the year of approximately $9,391, a 1% change either up
or down in the LIBOR rate would have changed the Company’s interest expense by approximately $94.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of
January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended January 29, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States}. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended January 29, 2006 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated April 14, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and an
adverse opinion on the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
April 14, 2006
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DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets ‘ 2006 2005
Current assets: w

Cash and cash equivalents : $ 1,565 1,200
Receivables 1,781 1,734
Inventories ; 135,077 129,486
Prepaid expenses ‘ 2,621 2,225
Property held for sale ‘ S85 —
Total current assets ‘ 141,629 134,645

Property and equipment, at cost: ‘
Land and land improvements : 2,559 2,313
Buildings and building improvements ? 17,822 16,173
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 52,406 52,692
Transportation equipment ‘ 1,370 2,908
Leasehold improvements 13,897 13,788
Construction work in progress 4,561 134
Total property and equipment ' 92,615 88,008
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization “ 63,591 63,520
Net property and equipment “ 29,024 24,488
Property under capital leases 23,228 18,228
Less accumulated amortization { 16,367 15,682
Net property under capital leases ! 6,861 2,546
Other assets : 55 89
Deferred income taxes ’ 1,353 1,350
$ 178,922 163,118

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Accrued salaries and commissions
Accrued taxes other than income
Self-insurance claim reserves
Stock purchase payable
Other current liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Total current liabilities

Notes payable under revolving loan credit facility
Capital lease obligations, less current maturities
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.0001 par value. Authorized 20,000,000
shares in 2006 and 2005; issued and outstanding
3,786,953 and 4,475,079 shares in 2006 and 2005,
respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Total stockholders’ equity

24

2006 2005
$ 1,879 856
28,300 22,234
1,163 351
6,001 4,728
4,743 4,367
3,915 3,365
1,910 —
2,998 2,399
86 914
50,995 39,214
17,062 4,023
7,299 3,726
1,419 1,479
76,775 48,442
1 1
36,411 50,889
65,735 63,786
102,147 114,676
$ 178,922 163,118
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DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Fiscal years ended January 29, 2006; January 30, 2005; and February 1, 2004

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 2005 2004
Net sales $ 435,015 409,345 398,186
Cost of sales | 296,503 273,644 265,135
Gross margin 138,512 135,701 133,051
Selling, general, and administrative 124,974 120,355 116,720
Depreciation and amortization : 5,946 6,428 6,828
Total operating expenses 130,920 126,783 123,548
Income from continuing operations ; 7,592 8,918 9,503
Interest expense ‘ 1,273 1,230 1,386
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes and discontinued operations 6,319 7,688 8,117
Income tax expense ! 1,729 2,640 2,456
Earnings from continuing operations hefore
discontinued operations : 4,590 5,048 5,661
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of ir come
tax expense (benefit) of $(1,445), $(636), and $3°'1 in ‘ ,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively (2,641) (1,125) 852
Net earnings $ 1,949 3,923 6,513
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic: |
Earnings before discontinued operations b 1.12 1.15 1.33
Discontinued operations ‘ (0.64) (0.26) 0.20
Net earnings $ 0.48 0.89 1.53
Eamings (loss) per share:
Diluted: :
Earnings before discontinued operations $ 1.11 1.13 1.30
Discontinued operations ! (0.64) (0.25) 0.20
Net earnings $ 0.47 0.88 1.50

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial stat:ments.
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DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Balance, February 2, 2003

Net earnings for the year ended
February 1, 2004

Repurchase and retirement of
common shares

Income tax benefit related to exercise of
stock options

Options exercised to purchase shares

Balance, February 1, 2004

Net earnings for the year ended
January 30, 2005

Repurchase and retirement of
common shares

Income tax benefit refated to exercise of
stock options

Options exercised to purchase shares

Balance, January 30, 2005

Net earnings for the year ended
January 29, 2006

Repurchase and retirement of
comrmon shares

Income tax benefit related to exercise of
stock options

Options exercised to purchase shares

Balance, January 29, 2006

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Fiscal years ended January 29, 2006; January 30, 2005; and February 1, 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

Common
stock Additional Total
shares Common paid-in Retained stockholders’
outstanding stock capital earnings equity
4,260,557 % 48,759 53,350 102,110
— — — 6,513 6,513
(69,300) —_ {658) — (658)
— — 360 — 360
108,559 — 868 — 868
4,299,816 49,329 59,863 109,193
— — — 3,923 3,923
(5,000) — (80) — (80)
— — 375 — 375
180,263 — 1,265 — 1,265
4,475,079 50,889 63,786 114,676
— — — 1,949 1,949
(729,861) — (14,085) — (14.985)
— — 84 — 84
41,735 — 423 — 423
3,786,953 § 36,411 65,735 102,147

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statemenis of Cash Flows
Fiscal years ended January 29, 2006; January 30, 2005; and February 1, 2004
(Dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings : $ 1,949 3,923 6,513
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ‘ 6,006 6,804 7,311

Amortization of debt financing costs o 95 75 75
Deferred income taxes : (831) (1,071) (972)

Loss (gain) on disposition or impairment ¢ f ‘

property and equipment ‘ 629 572 (406)
(Increase) decrease in receivables ﬂ 47 (213) 494
(Increase) decrease in inventories (5,591) 2,175 (1,984)

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 301 (456) 227

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable i 6,066 (5,565) 2,558

Increase (decrease) in income taxes payabl: : 896 (1,218) 978

Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and commissions 1,273 747 103

Increase (decrease) in accrued taxes other than income 376 (129) 561

Increase in self-insured claims reserves ‘ 550 2,211 1,154

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities l 539 (172) 185
Decrease in deferred revenue : — (419) (438)

Net cash provided by operating activiiies ‘ 12,211 5,770 16,359

Cash flows from investing activities: :
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment ' 50 1,977 1,169
Acquisition of: “

Buildings ‘ (4,971) (346) (59)
Fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements ?1 (6,150) (6,199) (4,216)
Net cash used in'investing activities : (11,071) (4,568) (3,106)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in notes payable under revolving loan i
credit facility ! — (935)  (12,525)

Net borrowings under revolving loan credit agreemn ent " 13,039 — —
Refinancing costs on revolving loan (61) — —
Proceeds from exercise of outstanding stock options ‘ 423 1,265 868
Repurchase of stock ‘ (13,075) (80) (658)
Principal payments on long-term debt ‘ —_ (533 (499)
Principal payments under capital lease obligations . (1,101) (803) (711)
Net cash generated by (used in) financing activities (775) (1,086)  (13,525)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 365 116 272)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ' 1,200 1,084 1,356
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,565 1,200 1,084
Supplementa! disclosure of noncash activity: ‘
Tax benefit related to stock options exercised : $ 84 375 360
Assets acquired under capital lease ‘ 5,697 — —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial stateinents.
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DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 29, 2006, January 30, 2005 and February 1, 2004

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Nature of Business

Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) is engaged in the business of retailing general
merchandise throughout the central portion of the United States of America through discount department and
variety store outlets. Merchandise is purchased for resale from many vendors, and transactions with
individual vendors and customers do not represent a significant portion of total purchases and sales.

(b)  Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany account balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

(c)  Basis of Presentation

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest to January 31. Fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 each
consists of 52 weeks.

(d) Inventories

Store inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value as estimated by the retail inventory
method. Warehouse inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company utilizes
the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method of determining cost of store and warehouse inventories. The Company
considers payments from vendors (i.e. vendor rebates and incentives) to be reductions in the cost of inventory
unless the payments are for specific, incremental, identifiable costs incurred to sell the vendor’s products or
services, in which case they are treated as a reduction of the related costs.

{e)  Property and Equipment

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Amortization
of capital leases is computed on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease agreements. Leasehold
improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the remaining lease term, or 10 years,
unless the cost of the improvement is considered major and the lease is within three years of its remaining
term, in which case one renewal term of the lease is considered. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 25 years
Building improvements 10 years
Coolers and freezers 15 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment : 3 — 8 years
Transportation equipment 3~ 5 years
Leasehold improvements 2~ 10 years

Major improvements are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs that do not extend the useful life of the
asset are charged to expense as incurred.

The Company has sold and leased back certain stores (Jand and buildings). The net proceeds from the
sale-leaseback transactions amounted to approximately $0, $1,660, and $0 for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. If a gain results from the sale-leaseback transaction, such gains are deferred and are included
within other noncurrent liabilities and are being amortized over the term of the related leases (15 - 20 years)
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() Operating Leases

The Company accounts for operating leases: over the initial lease term without regard to available renewal options.
The Company considers free rent periods and scheduled rent increases in determining total rent expense for the
initial lease term. Total rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over that term.

(g) Insurance

The Company is essentially self insured for ts worker’s compensation, general liability, and medical insurance.
Due to the fact that it takes more than one year to determine the actual costs under these plans, these costs are
estimated based on the Company’s historical loss experience and estimates from the insurance carriers and
consultants.

(h) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tex consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss
and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets axd liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. The Company reflects changes in estimates related to prior period
income taxes as a component of current p:riod income tax expense,

(i) NetSales

Sales are recorded in the period of sale. Seles returns, which are not material, are recorded in the period of
return as a reduction of sales. ‘

(G)  Net Earnings Per Share

Basic net earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding. Diluted net earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if contracts to issue
securities (such as stock options) were exercised. See note 9.

(k) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers cash and cash equivalents
to include currency on hand and money market funds. During fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004, the following
amounts were paid for interest and income 1axes:

2006 2005 2004

Interest, excluding interest on
capital lease obligations and
amortization of debt financing
costs (net of capitalized
interest of $54 in fiscal 2006, $16
in fiscal 2005, and $16 in fiscal ‘
2004) $ 774 6438 639

Income taxes 584 3,991 2,822

29




DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
January 29, 2006, January 30, 2005 and February 1, 2004

{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
(1)  Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made certain estimates and assumptions in the reporting of assets and
liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(m) Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. For
purposes of determining impairment, the Company groups assets at the store level. Assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. No provisions for asset
impairment in fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 are included in the consolidated statements of operations.

(n) Store Closings and Discontinued Operations

A provision for store closure expenses is recorded when the Company discontinues using the facility. A
summary of the expense and liability (included in other current liabilities) related to store closures as of and
for the years ended January 29, 2006; January 30, 2005; and February 1, 2004 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Store closure liability at beginning
of year $ 107 18 146
Store closure expense (included in
discontinued operations) 808 109 11
Payments (438) (20) (139)
Store closure liability at
end of year $ 477 107 18

As a result of the store closings, the Company had two properties that were vacant and classified as “ Assets
Held for Sale.” At January 29, 2006, they are recorded at their net realizable value of $585.

The Company has determined that generally each store is a component of the entity and that for each closed
store (i) the operations and cash flows of the component have been eliminated from the ongoing operations of
the entity and (ii) the entity will not have any significant continuing involvement in the operations of the
component after the store is closed. This is a result of the Company’s stores being geographically disbursed.
The results of operations for stores that have been closed by the Company (twenty-three, seven, and eight
stores in fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively) have been reclassified to discontinued operations in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented. The Company does not
allocate interest expense to discontinued operations.

(0) Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense of $6,180, $5,594, and
$5,570 in the fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.
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(p) Stock-based Compensation

The Company applies the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations to
account for its fixed-plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense is recorded on the date of
grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. If the Company had
elected to recognize compensation cost based on the fair value of the options granted at grant date, net

earnings and net earnings per share would have been decreased to the pro forma amounts indicated in the
table below:

2006 2005 2004

Net earnings as reported $ 1,949 3,923 6,513
Pro forma stock-based employee 3

compernsation cost, net of tax C(250) (29) (109)

Pro forma net earnings  $ - 1,699 3,894 6,404

Earnings per share as reported:

Basic $ . 048 0.89 1.53

Diluted - 047 0.88 1.50
Earnings, per share, pro forma:

Basic 0.42 0.89 1.51

Diluted . 041 0.87 1.47

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant in the applicable fiscal year using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2006
Expected dividend yield ‘ —
Expected stock pricz volatlhty 38.4
Risk-free interest rate 4.0
Expected life of options 1 5 years

The weighted average grant date fair value of options:ﬂ granted during fiscal 2006 is $18.40 per share. No
options were issued during fiscal years 2005 and 2004.

(g) Future Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.
Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123.
However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all she re-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the incoms statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no
longer an alternative. Accordingly, the adopiion of SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method will have an impact
on the Company’s results of operations. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) during the first

quarter of fiscal 2007; however, the Compar y has not yet determined the impact it will have on its results of
operations.
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Inventories

Inventories at January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value as
determined under the LIFO method of accounting. Inventories at January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 are
summarized as follows:

2006 2005
FIFO cost $ 136,269 130,707
Less LIFO and markdown reserves (1,192) (1,221)
LIFO cost $ 135,077 129,486

Credit Arrangements, Notes Payable, and Long-term Debt

The Company entered into a loan agreement with its lenders on April 15, 2002 that provides a revolving loan credit
tacility of up to $70,000 of long-term financing. The amount advanced (through a note or letters of credit) to the
Company bears interest at (i) the prime rate plus a margin, as defined, which varies based on the amount
outstanding (Base Loan) or (ii) based on the Euro dollar rate plus a margin, as defined, (Index Loan). The amount
advanced is generally limited to 70% of eligible inventory, as defined. Advances are secured by a security interest in
the Company’s inventory. The loan agreement contains various restrictions that are applicable when outstanding
borrowings reach certain thresholds, including limitations on additional indebtedness, acquisitions of assets, and
payment of dividends. On June 1, 2005 the Company and its lender, Bank of America, agreed to extend the
revolving loan credit facility. The loan agreement, which was due on April 15, 2006, will now be due on April 15,
2010.

Notes payable outstanding at January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 under the revolving loan credit facility
aggregated $17,062 and $4,023, respectively. The lender had also issued letters of credit aggregating $3,978 and
$3,611, respectively, at such dates on behalf of the Company. The interest rates on outstanding borrowings at
January 29, 2006 were 7.25%. The Company had additional borrowings available at January 29, 2006 under the
revolving loan credit facility amounting to $48,960.

Interest expense on notes payable and long-term debt in fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 aggregated $644, $522, and
$659, respectively.

Employee Benefits

The Company has a trusteed Profit Sharing Plan (the Plan) for the benefit of eligible employees. The Plan provides
for an annual contribution of not more than 20% of earnings for the year before the profit sharing contribution and
Federal and state income taxes, limited to 15% of the annual compensation of the participants in the Plan.
Contributions by the Company vest with the participants over a seven-year period. The Company reserves the right
to discontinue its contributions at any time. Expense arising from such Plan for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004
amounted to $0, $420, and $699, respectively.
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5. Leases

The Company is lessee under long-term capita. leases expiring at various dates. The components of property under
capital leases as of January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 are as follows:

A 2006 2005
Buildings $ 14,890 14,890
Fixtures 3,338 3,338
Software ‘, 5,000 —
‘ 23,228 18,228
Less accumulated amortization k 16,367 15,682
Net property under capital leases | $ 6,861 2,546

The Company also has noncancelable operatin; leases, primarily for buildings that expire at various dates. The
Company expects to acquire additional softwarz which will be added to the software lease during fiscal 2007.

Future minimum lease payments under all noncencelable leases, together with the present vatue of the net minimum
lease payments pursuant to capital leases, as of January 29, 2006 are as follows:

Capital Operating
leases leases
Fiscal year: \ .

2007 ‘ $ 2,818 10,722
2008 ‘ 2,547 8,891
2009 2,044 6,395
2010 V 1,931 4,782
2011 ‘ 1,563 4,092
Later years 1,263 22,055
Total minimum lease payments 12,166 $ 56,937

Less amount representing interest ‘ 2,988

Present value of net minimum lease payments 9,178

Less current maturities ; 1,879

Capital lease obligations, less current maturities $ 7,299

Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $20 under operating leases due in the
future under noncancelable subleases. They also d» not include contingent rentals, which may be paid under certain
store leases on the basis of percentage of sales in excess of stipulated amounts. Contingent rentals applicable to
capital leases amounted to $100, $88, and $87 for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The Company entered into a software lease and « flexible lease financing proposal regarding the lease of POS

bardware with General Electric Capital Corporat'on (“GECC”) on December 1, 2005 and December 5, 2005,

respectively. GECC has established a $14,500 fixcd lease line for existing stores for the Company. The lease line

can be increased to accommodate any new stores that the Company opens. The software lease, which is a capital

lease, is not to exceed $7,000. It began on January 1, 2006 and has a term of five years. The hardware lease, which

is an operating lease, is to begin by September 30. 2006, and has a term of four years. As of January 29, 2006,
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$5,451 was outstanding against this lease line. The Company has additional borrowing available under the lease line
of $8,803 as of January 29, 2006.

Interest on capital lease obligations in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 aggregated $544, $583, and $672, respectively.

The following schedule presents the composition of total rent expense for all operating leases for fiscal 2006, 2005,
and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Minimum rentals $ 10,768 10,973 11,053
Contingent rentals 1,120 967 872
Less sublease rentals (53) (58) (68)
$ 11,835 11,882 11,857

Income Taxes

The Company’s income tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

2006 2005 2004
Income tax expense (benefit) allocated
to continuing operations $ 1,729 2,640 2,456
Income tax expense (benefit) allocated ,
to discontinued operations (1,445) (636) 371
Total income tax expense $ 284 2,004 2,827

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 consists of:

Current Deferred Total

2006:
Federal 3 2,124 (626) 1,498
State 436 (205) 231
$ 2,560 (831) 1,729

2005:
Federal $ 3,288 (898) 2,390
State 423 (173) 250
) 3,711 (1,071) 2,640

2004:
Federal $ 2,850 (810) 2,040
State 578 (162) 416
$ 3,428 (972) 2,456

34



DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Corsolidated Financial Statements
January 29, 2006, Jenuary 30, 2@05 and February 1, 2004

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations was $1,729, $2,640, and $2,456 for fiscal 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively, and differs from the aiounts computed by applying the Federal income tax rate of 35% in
2006, 2005, and 2004 as a result of the following: I

2006 2005 2004
Computed “expected” tax expense $ i 2,212 2,302 3,112
State income taxes, net of the Federal :
income tax benefit _ o212 137 296
Adjustment for prior period taxes (371) — (618)
Other, net _ . (324) 201 (334)
$ 1,729 2,640 2,456

The Company analyzes its income tax liability account based on current information. As a result of this analysis,
the Company determined that it was overaccrued with respect to certain matters arising in prior years. The Company
reversed this overaccrual of approximately $271 and $618 during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 and 2004,
respectively.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signiﬁcant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities at
January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2005 are presented below:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: '
Capital leases ‘ $ 645 779
Other liabilities 3,715 2,882
Property and equipment, due to differences in depreciation
and a prior business combination accounted for as -
a purchase ‘ 133 —
State net operating loss carryforwards ; 179 9
Total gross deferred tax assets j 4,672 3,670
Less valuation allowance ‘ (122) (9)
Net deferred tax assets ' 4,550 3,661

1
i

Deferred tax liabilities: : ‘
Inventories, principally due to differences in the LIFO -
reserve arising from a prior business combination
accounted for as a purchase ‘ 3,012 2,412
Property and equipment, due to differences in depreciation
and a prior business combination accounied for as

a purchase ‘ — 587
Other assets | 271 226
Total gross deferred tax liabilities | 3,283 © 3,225

At January 29, 2006, the Company has net operating loss car%yforwards for state income tax purposes aggregating
$2,167, which are available to offset future state taxable income in those states, if any, expiring beginning in fiscal
year 2020. The valuation allowance offsets the ne: operating loss carryforwards. The Company believes it is more
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likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the remaining
deferred tax assets.

Stock Option Plan

The Company has a 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan under which no securities remain available for issuance. The
Company has a 2003 Incentive Stock Option Plan under which options to purchase 500,000 shares of common
stock may be granted to key employees. As of January 29, 2006, 390,000 securities remain available for issuance.
The plan provides that the option price shall not be less than the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant
and that unexercised options expire five years from that date. The options become exercisable in equal amounts
over a four-year period from the grant date. Information regarding options that were outstanding at January 29,
2006; January 30, 2005; and February 1, 2004 is presented below:

Weighted
Number average
of exercise
shares _price
Options outstanding, February 2, 2003 434,375 §$ 9.53
Issued — —
Exercised (108,559) 8.00
Canceled (43,845) 17.06
Options cutstanding, February 1, 2004 281,971 8.94
Issued — —_
Exercised (180,263) 8.19
Canceled (30,534) 8.44
Options outstanding, January 30, 2005 71,174 11.07
Issued 110,000 18.40
Exercised (41,735) 10.15
Canceled : (6,201) 11.84
Options outstanding, January 29, 2006 - 133,238 17.37
Options outstanding
Number Number
outstanding exercisable
at Remaining at
Exercise January 29, contractual Exercise January 29,
price 2006 ‘ life price 2006

$ 12.50 23,238 0.2 $ 12.50 14,318

18.25 100,000 3.2 18.25 —

19.90 10,000 33 19.90 —

Stockholders’ Equity

Since 1998, the Company’s board of directors has approved plans to repurchase up to 1,814,461 shares of the
Company’s common stock (the Stock Repurchase Program). Purchases pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program
are to be made from time to time in the open market or directly from stockholders at prevailing market prices. The
Stock Repurchase Program is anticipated to be funded with internally generated cash and borrowings under the
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credit facility. As of January 29, 2006, the Company had purchased and retired 1,814,461 shares of common stock
for $23,857. All shares purchased by the Cotnpany under this program are retired. On March 23, 2006, the
Company’s board of directors approved a new plan authorizing the repurchase of up to 200,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock.

9, Earnings Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the outstanding shares utilized in the computation of eamings per share:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted average shares outstanding ‘
(basic) 4,083,798 4,391,538 4,243,441
Effect of dilutive options to purchase ‘
common stock 34,124 72,878 99,940
As adjusted for diluted :
calculation 4,117,922 4,464,416 4,343,381
10. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) E‘
Financial results by quarter are as follows:
First ‘ Second Third Fourth
quarter guarter quarter quarter (1)
2006 T !
Net sales $ 98,026 - 108,679 101,117 127,193
Gross margin 30,560 32,683 32,672 42,492
Eamings from
continuing operations (1,156) 699 (85) 5,132
Net eamings (loss) (2,730) (294) (187) 5,160
Net earnings (loss) per share (2):
Basic 0.62) (0.07) (0.05) 1.34
Diluted 0.62) 0.07) (0.05) 1.33
2005:
Net sales $ 95,351 102,286 04,285 117,423
Gross margin 31,934 33,923 32,543 37,301
Earnings from ‘
continuing operations 882 1,432 461 2,272
Net earnings (loss) 687 1,187 46) 2,095
Net earnings (loss) per share (a):
Basic 0.16 | 0.27 0.01) 0.47
Diluted 0.16 0.27 0.01) 0.47
0] In fiscal 2006, the reduction in shrinkage related to a warehouse inventory adjustment contributed $1.3

million to the gross margin. A reversal of an over-accrual of income taxes of $371 positively impacted net
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earnings.

2 Earnings per share amounts are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore,
the sum of the quarterly earnings per share in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 does not equal the total computed
for the year.

3y The amounts shown for net sales, gross margin, and earnings from continuing operations for the first,
second, and third quarters do not agree to previously reported amounts due to reclassifications that have been
made for discontinued operations (see also note 1(n)).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has determined the fair value of its financial instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 107,
Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments. For notes payable under revolving loan credit facility, fair
value approximates the carrying value due to the variable interest rate. For all other financial instruments including
cash, receivables, accounts payable, and accrued expenses, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of those instruments.

Related Party Transactions

Operating lease payments to related parties (board members and related companies) amounted to approximately
$680, $673, and $679 in fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

During fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company paid a consulting firm $0, $15, and $270, respectively, to
develop certain retailing initiatives. A board member of the Company has an ownership interest in the consulting
firm. ‘

Business Operations and Segment Information

The Company’s business activities include operation of ALCO Discount Stores in towns with populations that are
typically less than 5,000 not served by other regional or national retail discount chains, and Duckwall variety stores
that offer a more limited selection of merchandise, which are primarily located in communities of less than
2,500 residents.

For financial reporting purposes, the Company has established two operating segments: “ALCO Discount Stores”
and “All other,” which includes the Duckwall variety stores and other business activities, such as general office,
warehouse, and distribution activities.
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Segment Information ‘
2006 2005 2004
Net sales: : '
ALCO Discount Stores $ 405,773 403,885 401,003
All other:
External . 30,851 33,443 32,984
Intercompany 247,667 234,284 234,806
$ 684,291 671,612 668,793
Depreciation and amortization; :
ALCO Discount Stores $ . 3,713 3,812 - 3,994
All other 02,233 2,616 2,834
$ ' 5,946 6,428 6,828
Income (expense) from continuing
operations: ~
ALCO Discount Stores $ 33,593 36,519 33,838
All other : (26,339) (27,870) (24,514)
$ 7,254 8,649 9,324
Capital expenditures: |
ALCO Discount Stores _ $ - 6,208 4,872 3,376
All other 4,913 1,673 899
| $ 11,121 6,545 4,275
Identifiable assets: . .
ALCO Discount Stores $ 130,908 125,620 128,637
All other 48,014 37,498 38,856

B 178,922 163,118 167,493

Income from operations, as reflected in the above segment information, has been determined differently than income
from operations in the accompanying consolidate statements of operations as follows:

Intercompany Sales

Intercompany sales represent transfers of merchandise from the warehouse to ALCO Discount Stores and Duckwall
variety stores. :

Intercompany Expense Allocations

General and administrative expenses incurred at the general office have not been allocated to the ALCO Discount
Stores for purposes of determining income from operations for the segment information.

Warehousing and distribution costs, including freight applicabie to merchandise purchases, have been allocated to
the ALCO Discount Stores segment based on the Company’s. customary method of allocation for such costs
(primarily as a stipulated percentage of merchandise purchases).
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Inventories

Inventories are based on the FIFO method for segment information purposes and on the LIFO method for the
consolidated statements of operations.
Leases

All leases are accounted for as operating leases for purposes of determining income from operations for purposes of
determining the segment information for the ALCO Discount Stores, whereas capital leases are accounted for as
such in the consolidated statements of operations.

Identifiable assets, as reflected in the above segment information, include cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
inventory, property and equipment, and property under capital leases.

A reconciliation of the segment information to the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements is
presented below:

2006 2005 2004
Net sales per above segment information $ 684,291 671,612 668,793
Intercompany elimination (247,667) (234,284) (234,806)
Sales included in discontinued operations (1,609) (27,983) (35,801)
Net sales per consolidated
statements of operations $ 435,015 409,345 398,186
2006 2005 2004
Income from continuing operations per
above segment information $ 7,254 8,649 9,324
Leases 338 269 179
Income from continuing
operations per consolidated
statements of operations $ 7,592 3,018 9,503
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ITEM 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMIINTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, inanagement of the Company, with the participation of the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of January
29, 2006. Based upon this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were nat effective as of January 29, 2006 because of the materials weaknesses
described in internal control over financial reporting d:scribed below in (Item 9A(b)).

KPMG LIP has issued an audit report on our fir ancial statements for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2006, which is
inctuded in this report. Also, our Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have certified that, to their knowledge,
the financial information included in this 10-X fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the pericds presented in the report.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Repofting

Management of the Company is responsible for esablishing and maintaining adequate control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Company’s internal control system is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance ty the Company’s management, Board of Directors and shareholders
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principals. Because ofits inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness represents a significant deficiency (as defined in the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board’s
Auditing Standard No. 2), or a combination of significan" deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2006
based on the criteria established in Internal Controi- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ’). As a result of this assessment, management concluded that the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of January 29, 2006.

Management’s assessment identified the following material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of January 29, 2006:

1. The Company has not established controls to requir:: a review of certain information prepared for inclusion in the
Company’s financial statements. Specifically:

s  The Company’s information system generatzs a report of all changes in or additions to its accounts payable vendor
master file, The Company does not have a ¢ yntrol that requires a review of this report by personnel independent of
the accounts payable function to assure that all changes were properly authorized.

¢  The Company makes manual journal entries as part of its reconciliation and closing process. The Company does
not have a control that requires a review of these journal entries and supporting analysis by someone other than the
preparer prior to being recorded in the general ledger.

e The Company does not have a control that requires a sufficiently detailed review of the Company’s financial
statements prior to their issuance.
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As aresult of this deficiency, adjustments were made to cash, inventory and accrued liabilities. Furthermore, there is a more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements would not have been prevented
or detected.

2. The Company has insufficient controls to ensure that warehouse inveniory and cost of sales are properly reporied in the
interim financial statements. Specifically, warehouse inventory is only reconciled to the general ledger annually. This
deficiency resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our interim financial statements
would not have been prevented or detected.

Our independent auditor, KPMG LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements
included in this report on Form 10-K, has issued an audit report on management's assessment of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting. Their audit report appears in Item 8 above.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial reporting

The Company is currently implementing procedures to establish and maintain controls which will result in the necessary
reviews being performed. The Company initiated the development and implementation of controls over the development of the
financial statements in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company is also designing and implementing procedures to
reconcile the warehouse inventory to the general ledger on a quarterly basis.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended
January 29,2006 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to material affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

{d) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting appearing under item 9A(b), that Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) did not
maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 29, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim f nancial statéments will not be prevented or detected. The following material
weaknesses have been identified and included in management’s assessment as of January 29, 2006:

1. The Company has not established controls to require a review of certain information prepared for inclusion in the
Company’s financial statements. Specifically: !

¢ The Company’s information system genzrates a report of all changes in or additions to its accounts payable vendor
master file. The Company does not have: a control that requires a review of this report by personnel independent of
the accounts payable function to assure that all changes were properly authorized.

®  The Company makes manual journal en'ries as part of its reconciliation and closing process. The Company does
not have a control that requires a review of these journal entries and supporting analysis by someone other than the
preparer prior to being recorded in the general ledger.

e The Company does not have a control that require§ a sufficiently detailed review of the Company’s financial
statements prior to their issuance.

As a result of this deficiency, adjustments were made tc: cash, inventory and accrued liabilities. Furthermore, there is a more than
a remote likelithood that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements would not have been prevented or
detected.

2. The Company has insufficient controls to ensure that warehouée inventory and cost of sales are properly reported in the
interim financial statements. Specifically, warehouse inventory is only reconciled to the general ledger annually. This
deficiency resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of our interim financial statements
would not have been prevented or detected.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of January 29, 2006 and January 30, 2003, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for 2ach of the years in the three-year period ended January 29, 2006. The
aforementioned material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated April 14, 2006 which
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidatec. financial statements

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as
of January 29, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion,
because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has not maintained effective internal contrcl over financial reporting as of January 29, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
April 14,2006 :
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be heid on May
23, 2006, contains under the caption “Election of Directors” certain information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K, and such
information is incorporated herein by this reference. The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K as to executive officers is
set forth in Item 1 of this Form 10-K. The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2006, contains under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” certain information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K, and such information is incorporated herein by this
reference. The Registrant's Proxy Statement also contains under the caption “Code of Ethics” certain information required by
Item 10 of Form 10-K, and such information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May
23, 2006, contains under the caption “Executive Compensation and Other Information™ the information required by Item 11 of
Form 10-K, and such information is incorporated herein by this reference (except that the information set forth under the
following subcaptions is expressly excluded from such incorporation: “Compensation Committee Report”, “Audit Committee
Report”, and “Company Performance™).

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May
23, 2006, contains under the caption “Ownership of Duckwall Common Stock” the information required by Item 12 of Form 10-
K and such information is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23,
20086, contains under the caption “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Related Party Transactions” the information required by
Item 13 of Form 10-K and such information is incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES,

The Registrant's Proxy Statement to be used in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23,

2006, contains under the caption “Ratification of Selection of Independent Accountants” the information required by ltem 14 of Form
10-K and such information is incorporated herein by this reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules, and Exhibits

1 Consolidated Financial Statements
The financial statements are llsted in the index for- Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

2) Financial Statement Schedules
No financial statement schedules are ixcluded as they are not applicable to the Company.

@3 Exhibits
The exhibits filed with or incorporated by reference in this report are listed below:

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3(a) to Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 and hereby incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Jemuary 29, 1995, and incorporated herein by reference) (filed as

Exhibit 3(b) to Company’s Annual Report on Form 10 K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 1995, and
incorporated herein by reference.)

33 Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to Company’s Fegistration Statement on Form S-1 and hereby incorporated herein
by reference).

41 Specimen Common Stock Certificates (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
and incorporated herein by reference).

4.2 Reference is made to the Amended and Restited Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws described above under
3(1) and 3(3), respectively (filed as Exhibit 4/a) to Company’s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1 and hereby
incorporated herein by reference).

43 Reference is made to the Certificate of Amencment to the Articles of Incorporation described above under 3(2)
(filed as Exhibit 3(2) to Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 29, 1995, and
incorporated herein by reference).

44 Form of 10% Subordinated Notes (filed as Exiibit 4(c) to Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 and
herby incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 Separation Agreement and Release, dated as of Décember 27, 2004, between the Company and Glen L. Shank.

10.2 Employment Agreement dated August 1, 2005 between the Company and Bruce C. Dale is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated August 1, 2005.

10.3 Employment Agreement dated January 5, 2006 between the Company and Tom L. Canfield, Jr. is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated January 9, 2006,

104 Employment Agreement dated January 5, 2006 betwzen the Company and James E. Schoenbeck is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K «f the Company dated January 9, 2006.

10.5 Employment Agreement dated January 3, 2006 between the Company and Michael J. Gawin s incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated January 9, 2006.

10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 28, 2000 bitween the Company and Richard A. Mansfield (filed as Exhibit 10.14
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2004 and hereby incorporated by
reference).

10.7 Employment Agreement dated January 5, 2006 betwe 2n the Company and Robert E. Swartz, Jr. is incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated January 9, 2006.
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10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

21.1

231

31.1

31.2

321

32.2

Employment Agreement dated January 5, 2006 between the Company and Anthony C. Corradi is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated January 9, 2006.

Employment Agreement dated January 27, 2006 between the Company and John R. Sturdivant is incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated January 31, 2006.

Employment Agreement dated March 23, 2006 between the Company and Michael S, Marcus is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated March 28, 2006.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2002, between the Company and Fleet Retail Finance Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended February 2, 2003 and hereby
incorporated by reference).

Joinder Agreement and First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated September 9, 2002 among the Company,
Fleet Retail Finance Inc., and DA Good Buys, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 2, 2003 and hereby incorporated by reference).

Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 19, 2005 with K&A Asset Management, LLC on behalf of Kenneth A. Macke
Revocable Trust.

Amended and Restated List of Subsidiaries of the Company (filed as Exhibit 21,1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2003 and hereby incorporated by reference).

Consent of Independent Auditors.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. dated April 14, 2006, pursuant to Rule 13a-4(a)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0of 2003,

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc. dated April 14, 2006, pursuant to Rule 13a-4(a)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2003,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc, dated April 14, 2006, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002, which is furnished with this Annual Reporton
Form 10-K for the year ended January 29, 2006 and is not treated as filed in reliance upon § 601(b)(32) of Regulations S-K.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc., dated April 14, 2006, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0£2002, which is furnished with this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended January 29, 2006 and is not treated as filed in reliance upon § 601(b)(32) of Regulations S-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the: Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, tiereunto duly authorized.

DUCKWALL-ALCO STORES, INC.

by /s/.Bruce C. Dale
Bruce C. Dale, President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: April 14, 2006

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date$ indicated:

Signature and Title Date
/sl Bruce C. Dale l April 14, 2006
Bruce C. Dale '

President and Chief Executive Officer \
(Principal Executive Officer) !

/s/ Michael S. Marcus ' April 14, 2006
Michael S. Marcus
Vice President - Finance and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Warren H. Gfeller ‘ April 14, 2006
Warren H. Gfeller
Director

/s/ Dennis A. Mullin ‘ April 14, 2006
Dennis A. Mullin
Director

/s/ Lolan C. Mackey ‘ April 14, 2006
Lolan C. Mackey
Director

/s/ Jeftrev J. Macke : April 14, 2006
Jeffrey J. Macke
Director

/s/ Robert L. Ring ; April 14, 2006
Robert L. Ring
Director

/s/ Dennis E. Logue : April 14, 2006
Dennis E. Logue
Director ‘

47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

48




Corporate Information

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP

Two Central Park Plaza
Suite 1501

Omaha, NE 68102
(402) 661-5200

Stock Transfer Agent
UMB Bank, N.A.

928 Grand Avenue
Securities Transfer Division
5th Floor

Kansas City, MO 64106
(800) 884-4225

Copy of Form 10-K

A copy of the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission for the year-
end January 29, 2008, including audited
financial statements, is included in this
Annual Report. Additional copies are
available upon request.

Requests should be directed to:
Charles E. Bogan
Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc.
401 Cottage Avenue

Abilene, KS 67410-2832

Common Stock

Common Stock is traded on the
NASDAQ National Market under the
symbol DUCK.

Corporate Headquarters
Duckwall-ALCO Stores, Inc.
401 Cottage Avenue
Abilene, KS 67410-2832
(785) 263-3350
www.alcostores.com

Annual Meeting

The annual mesting of shareholders will
be held at 10:00 a.m. CDT on Tuesday
May 23, 2006 at “he principal executive
offices of the Coripany, located at

401 Cottage Averiue, Abilene, KS.

Shareholder Relations

For help with questions about the
company, or for edditional corporate
information, please contact:

Duckwall-ALCO Sitores, Inc.
401 Cottage Averiue
Abilene, KS 6741(1-2832
(785) 263-3350
www.alcostores.com

Officers
Bruce C. Dale
President & Chief Executive Officer

James E. Schoenbeck
Senior Vice President
Real Estate & Huiman Resources

John R. Sturdivant
Senior Vice President
Stores

Charles E. Bogan
Vice President & Sorporate Secretary

Tom L. Canfield, Jr.
Vice President
Administration & Distribution

Michael S. Marcus
Vice President & 1Chief Financial Officer

Tony C. Corradi
Vice President & Chief
Technology Officer

Michael J. Gawin

Vice President

Divisional Merchandise Manager—
Softlines

Robert E. Swartz, Jr.

Vice President

Divisional Merchandise Manager—
Hardlines

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Warren H. Gfeller
Private Investor

Directors

Dennis E. Logue
Ledyard National Bank
Chairman of the Board

Jeffrey J. Macke
JKM Investments
Partner

Lolan C. Mackey
Diversified Retail Solutions
Partner

Dennis A. Mullin
Steel & Pipe Supply Company
President & CEO

Robert L. Ring
Consultant
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